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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We wanted to

          3  have this hearing to look into some very important

          4  issues related to how we run our public assistance

          5  system in New York City. And also, later in the

          6  hearing we're going to talk about the impact of some

          7  actions being considered in Albany that we think

          8  will have a profound impact on public assistance

          9  recipients here in New York City.

         10                 The first part of the hearing will be

         11  in relationship to Reso 155-A, introduced and

         12  sponsored by Council Member Miguel Martinez of

         13  Manhattan, and later on again we will look at the

         14  statewide situation, including Reso 154, also

         15  introduced by Council Member Martinez.

         16                 I want to thank the Council member

         17  for his leadership, and we also look forward to the

         18  role today of Council Member Margarita Lopez, who

         19  also has raised important concerns about how we are

         20  managing our public assistance system.

         21                 The simple point is this: We all, I

         22  hope, share a goal of ensuring that everyone who

         23  deserves public assistance get it and gets it in a

         24  timely manner. Because we realize this is a real

         25  life dynamic in which those resources are crucial to
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          2  each family and particularly to the children of

          3  those families. We want to make sure that fair

          4  hearing policies work. We want to make sure that

          5  sanctions are only implemented when there is

          6  absolutely no other choice and when every

          7  opportunity for due diligence has been exhausted.

          8                 We do understand that it is a very

          9  difficult system to administer. And we respect our

         10  colleagues at HRA, we know it's not by any stretch

         11  of the imagination a simple task, but we also

         12  understand that when any mistake is made that has a

         13  negative impact on family, that we have to struggle

         14  to improve our public policies to avoid those

         15  mistakes.

         16                 We are particularly concerned about

         17  the sanction process, and trying to make sure that

         18  it is responsive to those with special needs, and

         19  hopefully time will allow, I know you will hear some

         20  questions from Council Member Lopez on a particular

         21  burden faced by people with mental disabilities in

         22  trying to navigate the public assistance process,

         23  and the appeals process.

         24                 So, as we have often said in this

         25  Committee, we need to protect the most vulnerable
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          2  New Yorkers, and their families, in particular the

          3  children of those families, and make sure that we

          4  provide the resources they need for the basics of

          5  life, and that nothing takes away those resources

          6  unduly.

          7                 And now I'd like to welcome the

          8  sponsor of these resolutions, Council Member Miguel

          9  Martinez, to say a few opening comments.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 I want to thank you for your

         13  leadership in helping and holding this hearing.

         14  Also, the Committee staff, in putting the

         15  information together.

         16                 As you mentioned, it is a concern as

         17  to the process of the fair hearing and the sanctions

         18  that are imposed on individuals who are on public

         19  assistance. It is the goal of this hearing to try to

         20  understand the process and to see if the individuals

         21  on public assistance are giving the appropriate

         22  opportunities and time frame to meet the requirement

         23  set forward to continue on the public assistance

         24  system.

         25                 It is of concern that hearing from

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  community and constituents, that not enough time are

          3  given to those who receive public assistance to meet

          4  the requirement and the appointment set by the

          5  Administration or the social workers art the

          6  different centers.

          7                 It is important that, as you

          8  mentioned, not only the adult are giving the

          9  opportunity necessary to meet the requirement before

         10  resourcing to sanctions, but it's also a way of

         11  protecting the children who are the most vulnerable,

         12  in this situation, because the sanctions are imposed

         13  on the adults and with the recommendations that are

         14  coming from the state, we want to make sure that we

         15  have a system in place that will protect the

         16  children that will be directly impacted if adults

         17  lose the benefits.

         18                 So, again, I want to thank you,

         19  Chairman, for holding the hearing. I want to thank

         20  the Administration for being responsive to our call

         21  to get a clearer idea as to the process and the --

         22  the process in place to ensure that opportunities

         23  are given to individuals who need public assistance

         24  to continue to receive the services.

         25                 It was also in coordination with
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          2  State Assemblyman Ruendiaz, Jr. (phonetic), who has

          3  also presented a bill in Albany calling for a reform

          4  of the fair hearing process to ensure again that the

          5  opportunities and the time frame for individuals to

          6  meet the requirement there set in place, rather than

          7  to resorting to the sanction immediately.

          8                 Again, thank you, Mr. Chairman, and

          9  to the staff of the Committee for all the help and

         10  the information put forward to conduct this hearing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. And

         12  I want to say, Council Member Martinez has taken on

         13  a history which to be very blunt is not the type of

         14  issue that always grabs the headlines and is an easy

         15  and simply one to pursue, and I admire him for

         16  taking on a tough issue that has a real impact on

         17  thousands of New Yorkers, and I thank him for his

         18  leadership.

         19                 I also want to welcome other members

         20  of the Committee. Larry Seabrook is the only other

         21  member of the Committee here right now, but our

         22  guests, of course, Miguel Martinez and Margarita

         23  Lopez, and we expect other members of the Committee

         24  in a moment.

         25                 I want to thank our counsel, Jackie
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          2  Sherman; I want to thank Cindy Espinosa of Council

          3  Member Martinez' staff for their key role in putting

          4  together this hearing, and now we welcome our first

          5  witness, Executive Deputy Commissioner Seth Diamond

          6  of HRA.

          7                 Welcome. Thank you for joining us

          8  again.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DIAMOND: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We welcome your

         12  testimony.

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  DIAMOND: Good afternoon. My name is Seth Diamond,

         15  and I am here today to testify about HRA's process

         16  for addressing employment and eligibility

         17  infractions.

         18                 HRA is required by federal and state

         19  law to take action whenever it receives information

         20  that an individual is not complying with an

         21  eligibility or employment requirement.

         22                 While we take steps to ensure

         23  individuals know of the eligibility and employment

         24  requirements to which they are subject, and can

         25  comply with these requirements, HRA is legally
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          2  prohibited from continuing to authorize benefits for

          3  those who have not complied with these requirements.

          4                 We do, however, make substantial

          5  efforts to ensure individuals who want to comply are

          6  both aware of the requirements and have notice if or

          7  when they are in danger of failing to comply with

          8  these requirements.

          9                 The failure to comply with

         10  eligibility-related requirements, which are strictly

         11  governed by state and federal law and regulation is

         12  the cause of most infractions for individuals

         13  receiving public assistance.

         14                 For example, 80 percent of the fair

         15  hearings concern eligibility-related issues, while

         16  only 20 percent concern violations of

         17  employment-related issues.

         18                 In cases in which the agency receives

         19  information, then an individual's eligibility is in

         20  question, either because the individual has missed a

         21  required appointment, or because he or she has

         22  failed to address an outstanding issue, such as

         23  providing information after a computerized match

         24  which reported assess and excess of public

         25  assistance limits, the individual is first given an
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          2  opportunity to address the matter with an HRA

          3  employee at a job center.

          4                 If the individual fails to initially

          5  resolve the matter at the job center, he or she will

          6  be offered multiple opportunities described below to

          7  correct the matter.

          8                 Only after being given numerous

          9  opportunities will the failure to resolve the matter

         10  result in the closing of a case for an eligibility

         11  issue.

         12                 HRA's goal is to ensure individual's

         13  receiving public assistance are enrolled and

         14  participating in programs designed to help them

         15  achieve their highest level of self-sufficiency.

         16  Using a network of community-based and other

         17  organizations and service providers, we work closely

         18  with individuals to design programs that meet their

         19  specific needs.

         20                 We recognize that the employment

         21  services we provide, are often critical to helping

         22  our participants make progress towards

         23  self-sufficiency and so our goal is to engage and

         24  re-engage, if necessary, individuals who need

         25  services.
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          2                 Our programs include both support for

          3  and expectations of the participants, offering a

          4  broad menu of services, but requiring individuals

          5  enrolled in those services to participate to the

          6  best of their ability.

          7                 This approach also reflects the

          8  interests of the City's residents who support the

          9  public assistance program and its many services, and

         10  who have a right to expect that those receiving

         11  public assistance will take the steps that they are

         12  capable of towards helping themselves.

         13                 It is our hope that individuals will

         14  take advantage of the many services offered by

         15  complying with eligibility requirements and by fully

         16  participating in our employment, training, education

         17  and wellness programs. And in fact, most do,

         18  recognizing that they can utilize our program to

         19  help improve their family's welfare.

         20                 For those who initially fail to do

         21  so, we have instituted an extensive process, beyond

         22  what is legally required, to attempt to contact and

         23  engage individuals who are not participating.

         24                 Consequences for non-participation

         25  are opposed only if all these efforts fail, and as I
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          2  will describe, even after the consequences are

          3  imposed, we attempt to re-engage individuals who are

          4  not participating in the programs that will assist

          5  them.

          6                 All individuals referred to

          7  employment or other activities have an opportunity

          8  to discuss any issue they believe may limit their

          9  ability to participate.

         10                 The issues are fully evaluated by

         11  trained staff either at HRA or through our vendor

         12  organizations.

         13                 For an individual referred to an

         14  employment activity, the decision that he or she has

         15  not complied with that activity is made not by HRA

         16  but by the not-for-profit or other organization that

         17  administers the program.

         18                 HRA gives organizations administering

         19  employment programs substantial flexibility within

         20  guidelines in deciding who is complying and who is

         21  not.

         22                 All individuals are excused for any

         23  hours they cannot work, due to illness, religious

         24  observance or other documented reasons.

         25                 We encourage organizations to use
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          2  their flexibility to allow individuals with good

          3  attendance records to continue participating, even

          4  if they sometimes fall short of the required hours,

          5  and to recommend consequences only on those who are

          6  not making an effort to comply.

          7                 Those participants who fail to

          8  respond to HRA's efforts to assess and enroll them

          9  in an employment activity, and who are therefore

         10  determined to be not cooperating, are sent a

         11  conciliation letter. This letter gives a Safety Net

         12  participant seven days, and a Family Assistance

         13  participant ten days to visit an HRA office to

         14  discuss with an HRA supervisor the information we

         15  have indicating possible non-compliance, and to work

         16  with us to resolve any issues interfering with

         17  non-compliance.

         18                 No appointment is necessary and the

         19  individual can appear at any time that is convenient

         20  for him or her.

         21                 Unless the individual has repeatedly

         22  failed to comply in the past, our preference is to

         23  resolve the matter at this conciliation meeting so

         24  that we can assign the individual to the appropriate

         25  activity.
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          2                 In the most recent months for which

          3  statistics are available, April 2004, for

          4  individuals appearing for conciliation, we resolve

          5  the matter in 77 percent of the cases, meaning that

          6  in the overwhelming number of cases the individual

          7  was assigned to an activity or to an employment

          8  assessment process and no negative action was taken.

          9                 Individuals who either disagree with

         10  the determination at the conciliation process, or do

         11  not appear for the conciliation meeting are sent a

         12  second letter, giving both Safety Net and Family

         13  Assistance participants an additional ten days to

         14  visit an HRA office for a meeting.

         15                 Individuals who have missed an

         16  eligibility employment or who have not responded to

         17  an issue affecting their eligibility, do not receive

         18  a conciliation letter, but do receive this letter

         19  called a notice of intent.

         20                 At this stage, also known as "the

         21  conference," we again attempt to re-engage

         22  individuals or to resolve their eligibility issue.

         23                 For individuals appearing for

         24  employment conference, in nearly 90 percent of the

         25  cases we settle the matter and assign the
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          2  participant appropriately, again, with no negative

          3  consequences opposed against the individual.

          4                 If an individual has an eligibility

          5  infraction and agrees to comply, like for example,

          6  allowing us to complete a recertification, the

          7  matter is also resolved without a penalty.

          8                 Individuals who are sent notices of

          9  intent also receive statements advising them of

         10  their rights to a state-administered fair hearing.

         11                 If an individual requests a fair

         12  hearing for an eligibility-related issue, prior to

         13  the hearing HRA sends out a letter for a Mandatory

         14  Dispute Resolution or MDR meeting.

         15                 The purpose of the meeting is to

         16  discuss the issue that is the subject of the hearing

         17  and to attempt again to take action to mutually

         18  resolve the matter.

         19                 Individuals attending MDR meetings

         20  may still pursue a fair hearing, but it is our hope

         21  to be able to resolve the matter prior to the

         22  hearing.

         23                 For the first five months of 2004, we

         24  have been successful in resolving the outstanding

         25  issue in nearly 40 percent of our MDR meetings.

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 If an individual requests a hearing

          3  the state will schedule it. At the scheduled hearing

          4  time, but before the hearing itself is held, we once

          5  again try to resolve the matter in a process known

          6  as "alternate dispute resolution."

          7                 As with the earlier process, our goal

          8  is to try and resolve the subject of the hearing in

          9  a fair manner, if at all possible.

         10                 Fair hearings are administered by the

         11  State of New York and decisions are made by the

         12  State Administrative Law Judges.

         13                 When a participant requests a fair

         14  hearing, we again review the case record to

         15  determine if the agency's action was correct, and if

         16  there is sufficient documentation to support the

         17  decision.

         18                 Participants are advised in writing

         19  that prior to the fair hearing and again at the

         20  hearing, they have the right to examine the contents

         21  of their case record, and all the documents and

         22  records to be used at the fair hearing.

         23                 As I have described, we make every

         24  effort to avoid matters -- to avoid having matters

         25  proceed to a formal resolution by fair hearings.
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          2  However, when that cannot be avoided, and when we

          3  have proceeded through the fair hearing process, we

          4  have prevailed in a vast majority of cases.

          5                 HRA has improved its fair hearing

          6  success rate considerably, and as of May 27th, 2004,

          7  stands at 81.8 percent for the year-to-date.

          8                 Only after all the above-described

          9  steps have been exhausted, a determination has been

         10  made that an individual may have infracted without

         11  good cause, the option of a conciliation meeting,

         12  the option of a conference meeting, a pre-hearing

         13  dispute resolution process, a pre-hearing case

         14  review and ultimately a fair hearing, if requested,

         15  has been held, are the consequences of

         16  non-compliance imposed.

         17                 These consequences are either a

         18  sanction for the failure to resolve employment, or

         19  child support issues, or a case closing for an

         20  eligibility-related issue.

         21                 The multiple stages of review,

         22  combined with a policy toward re-engaging an

         23  individual whenever possible, ensures, as much as we

         24  are able, the process is fair to the participants,

         25  and that individuals who want to comply are able to
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          2  comply.

          3                 Finally, it should be noted that even

          4  after sanctions have been imposed on an individual

          5  for an employment infraction, we make yet another

          6  attempt to re-engage them in an employment process.

          7                 Individuals receiving family

          8  assistance on the first instance of non-compliance

          9  can walk into a job center at any time and tell us

         10  they are compared to comply.

         11                 Further, we regularly send letters to

         12  individuals serving their first sanction, asking

         13  them to participate in an employment program.

         14                 If they agree to participate, we lift

         15  the sanction and enroll them in an employment

         16  program.

         17                 We believe our resolution and appeal

         18  process is a fair one. One that offers individuals

         19  opportunities for valuable services, supports them

         20  in their participation, and imposes consequences for

         21  failing to comply only after repeated attempts to

         22  engage their participation has failed.

         23                 It is our hope, and in most cases our

         24  experience, that individuals receiving public

         25  assistance comply with their participation
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          2  requirements, so that we can assist them to achieve

          3  the greatest level of self-sufficiency.

          4                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          5  testify, and if you have any questions, I'd be happy

          6  to answer them now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 I want to welcome Council Member Bill

         10  Perkins, a member of the Committee. I also would

         11  like to give the first opportunity to question to

         12  Council Member Margarita Lopez, who I know has some

         13  time constraints. I'd like to let her get the first

         14  questions in.

         15                 Council Member.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I'm very

         17  pleased to see changes in the Department,

         18  particularly I remember when you used to come here

         19  and testify under the other Administration, and the

         20  treatment of the people who used to apply for

         21  welfare wasn't even humane, then it's great to see

         22  you here with a different administration

         23  representing the services that the people need in

         24  regard of the Welfare Department and see that the

         25  approach is so different. Then I'm glad to see that
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          2  change.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DIAMOND: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In regard of

          6  your testimony, I am after a piece of information

          7  for awhile that had to do with people with severe

          8  mental illness, or mental illness in general, and

          9  how they are treated inside of the Department in

         10  order to apply for the welfare until they are

         11  transferred to the SSI.

         12                 I want to know how that process

         13  worked with them, and if you have a statistical

         14  information in regard of that population; one, I

         15  want to know how many of them have applied and

         16  transferred to SSI? How many of them were helped by

         17  you in order to accomplish that process? And how

         18  many of them fall through the cracks and eventually

         19  you find out that the reason why it's a problem in

         20  reporting to work had to do with mental illness?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DIAMOND: Well, we've made a lot of efforts to better

         23  screen and assess people at the application process

         24  so that we can appropriately serve them, and

         25  certainly mental illness is one of the areas where
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          2  we've tried to develop a process so that we can make

          3  sure that people get the services they need.

          4                 I think Commissioner Eggleston, when

          5  she was here, I know when she was here last month

          6  for budget hearings, talked about our We Care

          7  program, which is a major initiative that we will be

          8  launching shortly, where we have major contractors

          9  with rehabilitative experience who will be working

         10  precisely with people not just with mental

         11  health-related issues, but with people with other

         12  rehabilitative needs to case manage them, ensure

         13  that they are negotiating the process, negotiating

         14  the program, not to impose consequences

         15  inappropriately, but to make sure that people are

         16  complying but doing so within the limits of what

         17  they can do.

         18                 Currently we have in place a version

         19  of that called our Pride Program, which also

         20  provides similar type services to people with mental

         21  health and physical-related issues. People are

         22  screened for that at the point of application and

         23  referred for the appropriate services.

         24                 Part of both of those programs will

         25  be to try and get people to SSI, because that, for
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          2  many people, represents a better financial benefit

          3  than welfare. It's also no cost to the City, so

          4  there's a substantial benefit for everyone to

          5  helping people get on SSI.

          6                 We have both HRA staff and contractor

          7  staff to work with people to help them negotiate the

          8  SSI process, and we'll be expanding those efforts

          9  under the new contract.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But you have

         11  not answered my question, and I'm glad that you gave

         12  me all that information. You have not answered my

         13  question.

         14                 In your testimony on page three, the

         15  first paragraph, is part of the reason I'm asking

         16  this question. In the first paragraph, you indicate

         17  that individuals referred to an employment activity,

         18  the decision that he or she has not complied with

         19  the activities is made not by HRA but by a

         20  non-for-profit organization that administered the

         21  program. That worry me. Because many people who

         22  suffer from mental illness, in the vast majority of

         23  them, they don't want to admit to it. The vast

         24  majority of them, they want to cover up, actually,

         25  the mental illness, and I don't blame them, there's
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          2  a stigma attached to it. It's part of the reason why

          3  people don't want to come from that painful reality.

          4                 Then if you're telling me in your own

          5  testimony the decisions of people's employment

          6  possibility -- and incidentally, people with mental

          7  illness prefer to be referred to employment activity

          8  because they don't want to admit to the illness, and

          9  if the decision is made by the program, I want to

         10  know with what tools they made that program.

         11                 Did they have a psychiatrist that

         12  evaluate these people? Did they have somebody in the

         13  program that look into them and determine, look,

         14  this particular individual is exhibiting some

         15  behavior that indicate to me that perhaps there's

         16  mental illness in there?

         17                 Does this program have that, the

         18  structure to do that, or not?

         19                 Because if it's not you who decides

         20  and it's them, I want to know, what are the tools

         21  that they count in order to make this determination.

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  DIAMOND: Well, first of all, we would hope that

         24  somebody with mental illness, such that it would be

         25  difficult for them to participate, would not get to
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          2  the point where they were referred to an employment

          3  program, a traditional employment program. Ideally,

          4  those people would be referred to our medical

          5  contractor, assessed and then if there's a mental

          6  health issue, they would either be exempt from

          7  participation, or placed in a structured program,

          8  like our Pride, and eventually our We Care program,

          9  that has specially trained clinical people who can

         10  make sure that they are providing appropriate

         11  services.

         12                 So, that's the first preference, and

         13  that's what we try to do. If, for whatever reason,

         14  it's not identified at the initial point and they're

         15  referred to an employment program, a more

         16  traditional employment program, those programs work

         17  with people in a more intensive way, and just having

         18  an assessment meeting at HRA, so they can often

         19  identify things over a longer period of time, that

         20  might not be apparent in an initial interview.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Let's backtrack

         22  a minute.

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DIAMOND: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The first

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  interview where you hope that you can stop the

          3  person from moving to the next step, what happened

          4  in that first step? Who interview this person? How

          5  this person is evaluated? The people are evaluated

          6  by a psychiatrist immediately there?

          7                 Who is the person that made the

          8  determination that looked to me that this person

          9  perhaps suffer from some mental illness, suffer from

         10  severe depression?

         11                 I mean, all of these categories are

         12  present, and I want to know, suppose that I suffer

         13  from schizophrenia, and I am a high-functioning

         14  schizophrenic, let's suppose that. And let's suppose

         15  I go there, and I go there to apply, and I am stable

         16  at the moment, taking my medication, I go there, I

         17  see, who talks to me who have the expertise to know

         18  that I should be sent to the medical unit and not to

         19  the employment unit?

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  DIAMOND: Well, your initial interview would be with

         22  a DAS worker, who doesn't have clinical training,

         23  but will hopefully be able to identify someone who

         24  is having difficulty navigating the application

         25  process, who is having difficulty understanding what
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          2  the worker was telling them. If those kinds of

          3  things were present, they would refer them to an

          4  evaluation.

          5                 None of those things were present,

          6  and the person did not present any symptoms, they

          7  might be referred to a more traditional employment

          8  contractor. But then, again, as I was saying before,

          9  that employment contractor works with somebody over

         10  a period of weeks and months, if they begin to

         11  notice certain symptoms, they then have the ability

         12  to refer somebody for medical evaluation.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And say we

         14  don't have in the first interview to begin with,

         15  which is in my opinion, the first entering of

         16  contact, and this is from my point of view, in that

         17  first interview, why is it that we don't have in

         18  place a way to identify this immediately when you,

         19  yourself, said that we will benefit immediately by

         20  sending this person to the SSI process, because

         21  that's where they belong.

         22                 I mean, we don't have a disagreement

         23  on that, right? Then why we don't have in that first

         24  entry a system in place where it will allow us to

         25  identify that person by training these workers, or
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          2  by having a procedure in which we determine that?

          3                 For example, do we ask people if they

          4  suffer from any mental disorder, or any particular

          5  physical or mental disorder that they should report

          6  to us? Do we ask them that in the beginning, or we

          7  don't?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  DIAMOND: Well, we ask if there are issues, physical,

         10  mental or other, that would affect their

         11  participation and activity.

         12                 So, yes, we do ask about that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You do ask

         14  that?

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  DIAMOND: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if that

         18  question is asked, why, I mean this is something

         19  that I feel very strongly, why we cannot put from

         20  the beginning, individuals who are trained to

         21  identify the settled sign of mental illness.

         22                 I mean, you have to know this as I

         23  know it, people who suffer from mental illness,

         24  cover their illness. They don't want people to know,

         25  they don't want to admit to it, they don't want
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          2  anybody to be aware of this because it's painful,

          3  it's bad because it's attached to a lot of stigma.

          4                 Then we know of that. Why we cannot

          5  then put in the beginning of the system, people who

          6  are trained to determine these things when they

          7  interview the person, why we cannot train those

          8  workers? What is the problem with that?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DIAMOND: Well, I think the workers have been

         11  trained, and they, again, are trained to refer

         12  somebody to a medical evaluator where they will see

         13  a psychiatrist --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You said that

         15  they were not trained based on the issues of mental

         16  illness. You said that in the beginning.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  DIAMOND: Not clinically trained.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How they are

         20  going to determine this if they are not clinically

         21  trained?

         22                 I mean, look, I have been in the

         23  field for a long, long time, and in the field I know

         24  that people can masquerade their illness, but if you

         25  train on the field of identifying this illness, you
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          2  can do it. It can be done. It can be done. No

          3  question in my mind.

          4                 And I know for a fact that in the

          5  community who suffer from mental illness, they come

          6  to my office with serious complaint about how to

          7  deal with this population and the employment

          8  program. Because more often than not they are

          9  referred to the employment program, and that's the

         10  reason I ask in the beginning of my question, what

         11  are the statistics that you have that show me how

         12  many people have go to apply and they were derailed

         13  from going through the job training program to the

         14  SSI to apply for mental -- you know, for SSI, based

         15  on mental illness; how many people like that you

         16  have, that you can tell me in numbers?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  DIAMOND: We don't keep records that way. I don't

         19  have a number.

         20                 But I will say that for those who are

         21  referred to the employment programs, if it's not

         22  present at the point of referral, my point was in

         23  the part that you quoted in the testimony, we expect

         24  the organizations to exercise flexibility and

         25  discretion in deciding who should be referred for
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          2  further evaluation, who is not really complying. We

          3  don't want the employment organizations to

          4  immediately sanction people who don't show up or who

          5  are not participating. But to make a judgment based

          6  on what they see is their ability, and if they think

          7  there's an issue, such as a physical issue, a mental

          8  health issue, to refer somebody for an appropriate

          9  evaluation, rather than begin the sanctioning

         10  process.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

         12  the Commissioner, and, Mr. Chairman, I think I

         13  proved my point. I have discussed this with you

         14  privately. I have spoken to Commissioner Verna

         15  Eggleston, who had given me a great tour of the

         16  facility, which I believe she's doing a great job in

         17  all of these things, but I do not believe that we

         18  are doing a great job for the people with mental

         19  illness.

         20                 I think that this system continue to

         21  fail them. I believe that we need to put something

         22  in place that stop the treatment of the people with

         23  mental illness as individuals that can go through

         24  this whole thing, my information from the advocates

         25  that work with me, on MFY, who trial these cases,
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          2  that they have to appeal these cases, they were the

          3  first one who came to me to tell me, look,

          4  Margarita, this is the problem we're confronting.

          5  They masquerade their illness and they get referred

          6  through the whole process. At the end of the day,

          7  what they do they quit, and they go back on the

          8  set-up line again. And they never get into the SSI

          9  rolls that they should get, because we should get

         10  them out of the welfare rolls immediately, and it's

         11  not happening.

         12                 Then we need to create the structure

         13  for that, and that's the reason I have asked you for

         14  legislation on this. And I continue to believe that

         15  that's a solution.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 First of all, I want to say to the

         19  Commissioner that I share the Council Member's

         20  concern to begin with how we are tracking this

         21  situation. And I appreciate that if you're trying to

         22  train your folks to be sensitive, let's say that.

         23  Maybe not the level of training we would like to

         24  see, but even to just recognize it, but we know

         25  there is also a lot of people either masquerading it
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          2  or falling through the cracks in one way or another,

          3  I would think part of how we solve this is to get a

          4  sense of what the outcomes are and, you know, what

          5  we're finding, we're finding regularly that people

          6  fall through the cracks and then end up having to

          7  come around and reapply where there should be some

          8  very systematic effort to identify it, the

          9  population, and figure out a way they train

         10  caseworkers differently or have a different type of

         11  specialist available at your site, or whatever it

         12  may be.

         13                 First of all, I agree with the

         14  Council member, we have a large problem here that

         15  needs systematic solutions, could you comment on

         16  sort of what you're trying to do to get a handle on

         17  the extent of the problem, or what thoughts you have

         18  going forward based on these questions?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  DIAMOND: Well, what we're trying to do, as I

         21  indicated before, is develop more rehabilitative

         22  programs. So, we'll work with people who can't

         23  participate in traditional employment programs, and

         24  our goal is to identify people who need those

         25  programs as early as possible, to refer them during
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          2  the application process to those kinds of service

          3  providers, who will work with them, case managing

          4  them throughout the entire process, will have a

          5  close relationship with their center, so that if the

          6  issues develop they can address them, who will

          7  provide initially rehabilitative services, and when

          8  they get to the point where they're more stable,

          9  provide employment services, and work with them

         10  throughout the entire process. That's the contracts

         11  that we talked about, the We Care contracts that

         12  will be in place starting in the early fall, and

         13  that's the way we're moving the entire system.

         14                 So, we are trying to identify people

         15  with issues of all kinds who can't participate in

         16  programs, and try and put services in place to

         17  address those needs.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council member,

         19  do you have a follow-up?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just have to

         21  make this last comment.

         22                 The Executive Commissioner just

         23  confirmed what I am saying. These are individuals

         24  who have multiple problems, individuals who clearly

         25  need rehabilitation. If they need rehabilitation,
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          2  what kind of individuals are we talking about?

          3  Substance abuse? Are we talking about mental

          4  illness? Usually we find both of them together. They

          5  love tangle. Alcohol, mental illness, they love each

          6  other. Because they masquerade the illness. All kind

          7  of substance abuses.

          8                 Then we know this information, and we

          9  know that if we're talking about individuals who

         10  have dysfunctions, multiple dysfunctions, most

         11  likely than not these individuals should be

         12  evaluated under the principles of possible mental

         13  illness, should be diagnosed and should be

         14  transferred to SSI. Not to send to the working

         15  centers, that's not the place where they belong. And

         16  this has been my argument all along, that they don't

         17  belong there, they should not be sent there, from

         18  the beginning. They should be sent to the Office of

         19  SSI, begin the process of application, and put them

         20  in the right place with treatment and services that

         21  they need for their illness. That eventually they

         22  maybe can go and work, maybe, that's an objective

         23  and we can try. But to begin with, you have to admit

         24  and recognize, that they have a serious dysfunction

         25  that don't allow them to be part of the work
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          2  program.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DIAMOND: We agree with that, and I thought that was,

          5  and maybe I wasn't clear, I thought that was the

          6  process I was outlining. We have specialized centers

          7  for individuals who are participating in

          8  non-traditional employment programs, really

          9  rehabilitative programs. One aspect of those

         10  programs is to work with people to qualify for SSI.

         11  We don't control the SSI eligibility process, and

         12  often, as you know, it can be a long, involved

         13  process going over more than a year.

         14                 So, we work with people during that

         15  process while they're hopefully qualifying for SSI

         16  to help them get all the information together, to

         17  get the doctors and other kinds of supporting

         18  materials to support their application, to make the

         19  best case possible.

         20                 We have them together with

         21  experienced providers for doing that, and we also

         22  group them in a center where they can ensure that

         23  they get the specialized services they need and

         24  their cases are not overlooked, and that the

         25  problems are addressed.
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          2                 So, I think we've taken a lot of the

          3  steps that you've outlined, and especially once we

          4  get the new contract in place --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you give us

          6  a list right now of all of the places that these

          7  people get referred to? What are the names of the

          8  places where they are located?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DIAMOND: The vendors that are providing the

         11  rehabilitative services?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes. The one

         13  that you said that right now as we speak received

         14  the referral of this particular group of people;

         15  where they are; who they are; how many there are?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: Right now we have in our Pride Program,

         18  which, again, is similar to the We Care, although

         19  the We Care will provide even much more extensive

         20  services, we have over 8,000 people. The vendors

         21  that are providing those services include FEGS, the

         22  Brooklyn Borough of Community Services, Goodwill,

         23  and I believe one other. They work with independent

         24  living centers who are experts, of course, in the

         25  SSI application process, to work with people both on
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          2  employment issues, and where necessary to refer them

          3  to SSI.

          4                 Those are the -- all three of those

          5  organizations are extremely experienced in the

          6  rehabilitative area working with people with

          7  disabilities, both physical and mental health

          8  related. And they have done a very good job in

          9  working with people who cannot participate in

         10  traditional employment programs, or to make people

         11  eligible for SSI.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I don't want to

         13  consume the time of this Committee on this, but I

         14  would suggest that we make a visit to this place.

         15  Because I want to understand how this is happening.

         16  This is the first time I hear of this. I don't know

         17  if you have hear of this before?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I would agree

         19  with that suggestion.

         20                 Commissioner, I think also in the

         21  last two and a half years there have been many

         22  instances where the Council had an interest in the

         23  legislative remedy and HRA has often been very

         24  resistent to legislative remedies. So, in the

         25  interest of communication, I'm saying to you that
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          2  the Council member suggested moments ago that we

          3  have a problem that may require legislative

          4  remedies. I think it's in your interest as an agency

          5  to make that to her available, and a meeting to

          6  discuss ways of improving the process of providing

          7  the service for those with mental disabilities.

          8                 Because I would think if you don't

          9  like, quote/unquote, that interference in your work,

         10  you have every interest in showing us that you have

         11  an administrative solution that will achieve the

         12  same goal that we seek. If you can't show it, of

         13  course we would proceed with this legislative

         14  solution.

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  DIAMOND: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         18  Council member.

         19                 I'd like to turn over questioning now

         20  to the sponsor of both of the resolutions before us

         21  today, Council Member Miguel Martinez.

         22                 Oh, I want to welcome, Council Member

         23  Jose Serrano, and is there anyone else? Council

         24  Member Chris Quinn has come in. I introduced you

         25  before, didn't I? I thought I got to you before. I'm
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          2  sorry. Council Member Bill Perkins.

          3                 Go ahead, Miguel.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 Commissioner, I just want to touch a

          7  little bit on what Council Member Margarita Lopez

          8  mentioned, in terms of the determination that is

          9  made by the non-profit, or the organization

         10  administering the program, the determination to

         11  eliminate or sanction, do they need approval from

         12  HRA? Or is this a decision made by the organization

         13  itself?

         14                 Was it a review by HRA before the

         15  determination is made?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: Those organizations don't decide to

         18  sanction anybody. What they decide to do is to begin

         19  the first stage of the process for non-compliance.

         20                 So, the point there is that we don't

         21  require organizations to place in the sanctioning

         22  process, to begin the sanctioning process to people

         23  who are not doing their required number of hours. We

         24  give the organizations flexibility to make a

         25  determination if somebody, even if they're not doing
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          2  the required number of hours they believe is still

          3  trying to comply, we allow those people to continue

          4  participating without any negative consequences.

          5                 If, however, the organization has

          6  somebody that they believe is not even trying to

          7  comply, is not consistently showing up, they then

          8  notify HRA and we begin the sanctioning process.

          9                 They're are still multiple

         10  opportunities, through conciliation, through

         11  conference, through the ways I outlined in the

         12  testimony for somebody who believes that's an unfair

         13  decision or an unjust decision to come in and

         14  contest it.

         15                 This is the first stage, and the

         16  point I was trying to make is that this builds in

         17  flexibility to the organization to make a decision,

         18  because they really have worked with the person and

         19  know the person best in terms of whether they're

         20  trying to comply or whether they're not really

         21  making any effort at all.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         23                 I want to go back to the statement

         24  you made in terms of the reduction of fair hearings

         25  and the goals of HRA. And I want to use some of your
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          2  statistics from your report.

          3                 For example, according to the report

          4  for HRA, the number of fair hearing requests filed

          5  during the month of April, comprise of 5.5 percent.

          6  The total number of under care cases Citywide,

          7  correct? As of April 18th, 2004, were 206,000 under

          8  care cases. Does this mean that approximately 11,382

          9  fair hearing requests were made in April?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  DIAMOND: I think that's a little high.

         12                 The request number for April I have

         13  is about 9,500. And that number has been about the

         14  same for the past several months. It goes up a

         15  little bit or down a little bit.

         16                 Those, though, don't represent --

         17  those represent cases where people want a fair

         18  hearing.

         19                 As I said earlier, there are efforts

         20  even before the hearing to try and resolve it, and

         21  then at the hearing we do win over 80 percent of the

         22  cases.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Out of that

         24  nine, how many went forward with the fair hearing?

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  DIAMOND: Well, it's hard to track from

          3  month-to-month, but I can tell you, in April, for

          4  example, there are scheduled approximately 13,000

          5  hearings. That represents some element of the ones

          6  that recently came in and then some from prior

          7  months. The State takes the request and does the

          8  scheduling. And not all the scheduled hearings take

          9  place, because sometimes the matter is resolved

         10  prior to the hearing, and we're able to avoid having

         11  a hearing all together, but the number of scheduled

         12  hearings generally run around 11,000 or 12,000 a

         13  month.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Eleven or

         15  12. But you can't give me an actual figure about how

         16  many are conducted, not scheduled?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  DIAMOND: I don't have that number here. I can

         19  probably get that for you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, what

         21  happened during that period, that the client is

         22  waiting for the fair hearing with their benefits?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DIAMOND: Well, if the individual has asked for a

         25  hearing during the notice of intent period, during
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          2  the period when the letter goes out informing of

          3  their fair hearing rights, they are given what's

          4  called a continuing, which gives them, essentially

          5  continues the benefits until the fair hearing is

          6  decided. So, they have no reduction in benefits

          7  until there is a fair hearing decision that's issued

          8  and it's implemented.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So the

         10  benefits are continued until the fair hearing is

         11  conducted?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  DIAMOND: Again, assuming the person has asked for

         14  the hearing within the time period or the state has

         15  decided that if they didn't ask for it within the

         16  time period, there was some reason they couldn't ask

         17  for it within the time period, then, yes, the

         18  benefits are continued during the pendency of the

         19  hearing until a decision is issued.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, before

         21  we get to the fair hearing, where you mentioned a

         22  different proceeding, prior to the fair hearing

         23  where you try to resolve the matter, when a client,

         24  for example, when a client receives a notice of

         25  cancellation, he doesn't respond to that notice,
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          2  either for various reasons, one could be that they

          3  don't understand what they have before them.

          4                 For example, I have a letter sent to

          5  a client which says that "we would like to discuss

          6  any problems you may have with work activity

          7  requirement and the reasons why on such date," and

          8  it gives you an FTR/FTC with intake section 401K. It

          9  doesn't say very much to the client, in terms of

         10  what it is that he's not in compliance with.

         11                 What I'm trying to get at is, if I am

         12  a client and I miss one of my requirements, rather

         13  than a notice of cancellation for not meeting that

         14  requirement, why not have, or will you support a

         15  system of a 15-day period for the client to meet all

         16  the requirements, rather than exhausting to all

         17  these, dispute resolution, I think you mentioned the

         18  conference, and -- I'm sorry, I'm trying to get

         19  different -- you mentioned the different process in

         20  which you try to mediate and resolve before going to

         21  the fair hearing process.

         22                 However, all the time you do one of

         23  these conferences, all the time you result to

         24  dispute resolution, they're also a cost next to

         25  that, correct?
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  DIAMOND: Well, there's staff time, client time,

          4  depending on what they're doing, sure there's a cost

          5  to all of that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, what's

          7  your opinion on what we're asking for in this

          8  resolution with the State bill?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DIAMOND: Well, I think you're aware that it's City

         11  policy not to testify on the content of resolutions,

         12  Council resolutions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay.

         14                 The idea of having a 15-day period

         15  for clients to meet their requirement, before

         16  exhausting to the different channels or mechanisms

         17  that you have already that sometimes could be

         18  complicated and confusing to the client, would it be

         19  a system that will work both for the client and for

         20  HRA, in reducing paperwork and casework?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DIAMOND: Well, we think we do have a system in place

         23  which allows people to resolve matters, both through

         24  the conciliation process, the conference process,

         25  and again through the process of not even putting
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          2  people in conciliation if they're trying to resolve.

          3  We don't think that there are additional time

          4  periods that are needed, because there are

          5  sufficient steps in the system that combine with our

          6  policy of resolving the overwhelming number of cases

          7  if an individual does come in for a conciliation or

          8  a conference meeting, that gives us confidence that

          9  people who are trying to work with us to resolve

         10  matters and participate, we can do that, and we

         11  think that the system has enough time in place that

         12  we don't make hasty judgments, that we give people

         13  enough time to work through the system, and if there

         14  are checks in the system, to prevent anything

         15  happening against somebody who does want to comply.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:

         17  Approximately what time are we talking about that

         18  the system allows now?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  DIAMOND: Well, again, before anyone is even placed

         21  in the conciliation process for an employment issue,

         22  if they're participating in an organization, the

         23  vendor would have to make a decision that they're

         24  not complying.

         25                 Once that happens, then you begin the
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          2  conciliation process which gives people either seven

          3  days or ten days, depending on the type of

          4  assistance they're receiving, the category, to

          5  resolve.

          6                 Then after that there's an additional

          7  ten days through the notice of intent process.

          8                 Then they have a fair hearing. So,

          9  all that process is certainly at least a month and

         10  maybe longer for somebody to try and resolve an

         11  employment-related infraction. For an eligibility

         12  issue it may be somewhat less because there's not a

         13  conciliation period. But there again, we do mailings

         14  both during the conference period, plus we try and

         15  do another mailing if they request a fair hearing

         16  prior to the hearing to try and resolve it. So,

         17  there's ample time and opportunities for people who

         18  want to comply to comply.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But there is

         20  no set time?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  DIAMOND: The conciliation has a time period, again

         23  either the seven days or the ten days. The

         24  conference has a time period of ten days, and then

         25  the state has time after that that they schedule a
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          2  fair hearing, not a set time for that. But there's a

          3  minimum of the seven or ten days, and then the ten

          4  additional days for the conference period, if you're

          5  talking about an employment issue. For an

          6  eligibility issue you have a minimum of ten days,

          7  where it can be resolved.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Do you have

          9  a percentage or a number of clients that don't show

         10  up for conciliation?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  DIAMOND: Currently about half the people show up for

         13  conciliation. And again, of those who show up, we

         14  resolve nearly 80 percent, 77 percent, in my most

         15  recent month, and about half don't show up.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Do we know a

         17  reason why the other half don't show up?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  DIAMOND: We don't. Some people just choose not to.

         20  They go right to a fair hearing. Some people wait

         21  for the conference. It could be a variety of

         22  reasons.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: In other

         24  words, when you first send conciliation notices,

         25  does HRA track the return mail that you get back?
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  DIAMOND: We track the return mail for wrong

          4  addresses and things like that, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Is that a

          6  large percentage? Is there a number behind that?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DIAMOND: I don't have that number here. It's not a

          9  large percentage, no.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Is there an

         11  attempt, a phone call made?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  DIAMOND: Well, we send another letter again, if it's

         14  a conciliation, another letter goes out through the

         15  notice of intent.

         16                 If we get a letter back that

         17  indicates we've sent it to the wrong address, we

         18  would try and send another letter before we would

         19  take an action.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, the

         21  client doesn't show up, he just loses benefits.

         22  There is no tracking of what happened to that

         23  client?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  DIAMOND: Well, again, if they have not taken

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  advantage of any of the resolution opportunities

          3  that we've offered, and not asked for a fair

          4  hearing, then the next thing that would happen, but

          5  this is after several letters of multiple mailings,

          6  then they would eventually get sanctioned or the

          7  case would get closed, but it doesn't just happen

          8  over night. It's over several weeks, sometimes

          9  longer, and many attempts to try and contact

         10  somebody after all those processes are exhausted. If

         11  they still haven't responded, then the action could

         12  be taken. They could be sanctioned or the case could

         13  be closed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: What are the

         15  results of the conference? How often are there

         16  sanctions imposed as a result of a conference?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  DIAMOND: Well, again, you wouldn't have a sanction

         19  imposed at the conference. What we would try and do

         20  is resolve the matter, and in nearly 90 percent of

         21  the cases 88 percent, in the most recent month, were

         22  people who appear at the conferences, we do resolve,

         23  for employment issues we do resolve almost 90

         24  percent of them.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: For
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          2  non-employment?

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  DIAMOND: For non-employment, I don't have --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Can you

          6  describe some of the issues that may come up that

          7  are non-employment?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  DIAMOND: Sure.

         10                 Employment relates to things

         11  involving people who are in work programs.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:

         13  Non-employment.

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  DIAMOND: Right. And non-employment would be

         16  eligibility-related things. People who are missing.

         17  Recertification appointments. People who we believe

         18  that there may be some income that has not been

         19  reported. We get evidence through maybe a computer

         20  match, and we ask them about it, and they haven't

         21  responded to that.

         22                 The most typical reason would be

         23  recertification appointment.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, for the

         25  non-employment, before conference, giving the client
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          2  a 15-day period to come up with the requirement

          3  needed for a recertification, as a mandate. And you

          4  said you're not here to speak on the resolution,

          5  but, however, 90 percent are employment, the other

          6  percent are for recertification, for compliance?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  DIAMOND: I'm sorry to interrupt. But not 90 percent

          9  are employment. Of the conferences that we hold that

         10  are employment related, we settle 90 percent of

         11  those, I don't have a comparable statistic for

         12  eligibility-related, but I'm sure it is close to as

         13  high, if not as high.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: It's close

         15  to 90 percent, the issue of the non-employment?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: Yes, I believe so.

         18                 I don't have that number with me, but

         19  I'm confident that it is -- in the overwhelming

         20  number of cases, if somebody appeared for an

         21  eligibility-related issue, assuming they're ready to

         22  comply, for example, they say they're willing to do

         23  the face-to-face recertification appointment, we

         24  settle the issue, do the face-to-face

         25  recertification and no consequences are imposed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: How often

          3  are the recertification appointments made?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  DIAMOND: Well, typically people have an annual

          6  requirement. Once a year they have to be

          7  recertified.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, within

          9  that year, I'm missing documentation for

         10  recertification, I'm subject to lose my benefits?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  DIAMOND: Well, you would have an appointment that

         13  would be made for you within the month that you were

         14  required to be recertified. So, there's a specific

         15  period, if you're recertified in June, we'll have

         16  your next recertification appointment the following

         17  June generally.

         18                 At that point you will be required to

         19  bring in certain documents, if anything has changed

         20  in your status, if somebody is working if whatever

         21  might have occurred differently that you need to

         22  make us aware of, we would then do the

         23  recertification.

         24                 If you need additional time to bring

         25  in documentation, then you'd be given that time, and
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          2  assuming you complied, the recertification is held

          3  and you're set in terms of recertification generally

          4  for another year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. That's it for now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          8  Council member.

          9                 The next question is from Council

         10  Member Bill Perkins.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I pass.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let's see if

         13  any of my colleagues have any other questions?

         14                 Let me ask a couple follow-ups. I was

         15  a little confused, Commissioner, on the questions

         16  around returned mail, and I guess what I'm hearing,

         17  and correct me if I'm wrong here, that a lot of us

         18  who believe in the most, the greatest level of

         19  outreach, and the greatest level of preventative

         20  level of work and all the different areas of

         21  government encourage direct visits to homes, and

         22  obviously on the other end of the spectrum with

         23  technology, we now have increasingly, in the whole

         24  range of communities in New York City, technology

         25  might be a solution. So, we seem to be in between,

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  dealing with mail, which is kind of imprecise method

          3  of communication, you say you get mail back, you try

          4  and find people, but then as a result of just not

          5  being found, they could fall off, even if there's a

          6  perfectly good reason why the mail didn't reach

          7  them, and I'm just trying to understand how you deal

          8  with that.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  DIAMOND: Well, first, people on public assistance

         11  have an obligation to inform us where they're

         12  living, because first of all, those are the federal

         13  and state rules, also their rent is tied to their

         14  residence, and so if they have a different residence

         15  it may require more rents, certainly would require

         16  the payment to a different landlord. So, we want to

         17  know where people are living, and we hope that

         18  people will tell us.

         19                 If, for whatever reason, they don't,

         20  and most people do, if for whatever reason they

         21  don't and we mail something to them, we may, as I

         22  said, get a letter back. We would then seek to look

         23  to see if we have an updated address for a person.

         24  It could be a timing issue, the letter went out on

         25  the 10th and the person recorded the address either
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          2  the day before or the day after, it wasn't entered

          3  properly into the system so that the two sort of

          4  things crossed.

          5                 Once we got the letter back, we would

          6  then seek to cancel the original action and reissue

          7  it to the new address.

          8                 If somebody doesn't tell us all

          9  through the process that they've moved, the first

         10  instance may be that when their benefits are ended,

         11  but there they can ask for a fair hearing and the

         12  state generally, if somebody says that they haven't

         13  gotten the letters, will grant them a continuing,

         14  meaning their benefits will not be affected until

         15  the matter is resolved.

         16                 So, certainly we want people to tell

         17  us when they've moved, when their address is

         18  changed, they generally have a financial interest in

         19  doing so, because otherwise their rent will be

         20  misdirected, their rent payment will be misdirected,

         21  and in the overwhelming number of cases, we do have

         22  that information correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I guess

         24  I'm saying if it's a postal service error, there's a

         25  building manager error, if there's any number or
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          2  other things that could happen, you know, there's

          3  more than one name on the apartment and for whatever

          4  reason it's not delivered because of that, is there

          5  -- and I think I heard you say there is an effort

          6  to reach by telephone, is there an effort to have

          7  someone go to the site if someone is not found,

          8  there is no other evidence that they are not

          9  eligible?

         10                 I'm just surprised at the possibility

         11  if someone, because of an error somewhere else in

         12  the system, someone could fall off who was

         13  absolutely and totally eligible and you had no other

         14  problem with, they could simply fall off because the

         15  mail came back?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: Well, we certainly don't want that to

         18  happen, and we certainly try and make sure that that

         19  doesn't happen by, again, sending multiple mailings

         20  so that if somebody doesn't get one, that there is

         21  some kind of postal error, the odds are they would

         22  get one of the other mailings.

         23                 Generally people who, for example,

         24  are complying with employment requirements have been

         25  able to keep up with their recertification
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          2  requirements, which does indicate that they're

          3  getting some mail. So, I would think that the

          4  address is working at least for some letters, which

          5  gives us indication that they have a functioning

          6  postal address and they're getting mail. We do, we

          7  would be happy to look at other alternatives, or if

          8  technology provides some opportunities to do things

          9  differently, but generally if we get the mail back

         10  and indicate the new address or if we've gotten a

         11  new address since we mailed it, we will make the

         12  change, but our goal, again, is to try and get

         13  people at their most current address. People do have

         14  an obligation to tell us what their address is and a

         15  reason to do so, and we want to make sure we do mail

         16  correctly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: My other

         18  question is, following up on some of the questions

         19  from Council Member Martinez, I'm trying to

         20  understand how you analyze, if you look at the

         21  number of cases where sanctions are given,

         22  completed, if you will, and then you try and analyze

         23  where there may have been any form of error or

         24  misunderstanding of that process or information

         25  didn't flow in a timely measure, or anything like
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          2  that. In a sense of quality control question, in the

          3  last year how many people did you sanction? And then

          4  did you find after the fact there are certain number

          5  of those, perhaps because of reapplication, you

          6  found that a certain number could not have been

          7  sanctioned; do you have numbers to clarify that?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  DIAMOND: Well, I think I have some of those. There

         10  are two types of sanctions. One is what's called

         11  removal, where you have a family case, and the

         12  parent, the prior language was that they were

         13  removed, but generally the grant is reduced but it's

         14  not closed. And in April, the most recent month for

         15  which we have numbers, there were 4,400 of those.

         16                 For single people, the consequences

         17  of non-compliance for an employment-related issue is

         18  a case closing, meaning the entire case is closed,

         19  that's one person; and in April there were 2,500 of

         20  those. Those numbers are roughly typical of the

         21  yearly average.

         22                 Now, we do, on the other end, as I

         23  said in the testimony, for those family assistance

         24  cases that are where their grant is reduced send out

         25  letters to people after their sanctioned asking them
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          2  if they are now willing to comply. In April we sent

          3  out over 900 of those, and then we lifted 1,600

          4  sanctions.

          5                 Now, those may not be the same

          6  people, meaning that the 4,000 people who were

          7  removed in April are probably not the 1,600

          8  sanctions that were lifted in April, and I don't

          9  think it necessarily indicates that there was a

         10  problem with the sanction, but it does show the

         11  extent of our outreach efforts and our willingness,

         12  if people are willing to comply, to lift their

         13  sanctions to restore them to public assistance, and

         14  to try and help them get going with their employment

         15  program.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So you answered

         17  part of the question I think effectively. I still

         18  want to delve into the second part, which is how do

         19  you analyze your success rate getting to the right

         20  answer?

         21                 So, presumably because this is a

         22  human organization, a certain number of the

         23  sanctions applied were in error. That would be true

         24  in any large organization. And obviously unlike many

         25  other large organizations, making sure those errors

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  are corrected quickly should be an imperative in

          3  terms of the impact on actual people who have very

          4  few other options.

          5                 So, my question is, what do you do to

          6  analyze, managerial analysis of how many might have

          7  been in error and what process is done to try not to

          8  repeat that type of error and rectify the individual

          9  errors?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  DIAMOND: Well, first let me say that, as I tried to

         12  make clear, certainly sanctions are not our goal.

         13  And our goal is to take every measure possible to

         14  try and re-engage the person prior to the sanction

         15  being imposed or any case closing being imposed.

         16  It's much better for everyone involved to get

         17  somebody restored to benefits or to have them comply

         18  and participating than to have them sanctioned or

         19  closed.

         20                 In terms of the possibility of an

         21  error, while there's always the possibility of an

         22  error in any organization, because there are

         23  multiple stages of review in this process, including

         24  at the end an appearance before a state

         25  administrative law judge, where there are several

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  people looking at the situation, we believe that the

          3  possibility -- in almost all cases the correct

          4  decisions are made.

          5                 It's not as if only one person is

          6  making a decision, one HRA employee, one contracted

          7  employee, again there's multiple stages of review,

          8  three or four people looking at every case, and we

          9  believe at the end of the day that almost all cases,

         10  if not all cases, the correct decisions are made.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And if after

         12  the entire process new evidence arose that showed

         13  that there was an error, how quickly can you put

         14  someone back onto assistance, especially if you do

         15  acknowledge that some error was made in the process?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  DIAMOND: Well, again, even if there's no error, we

         18  can quickly lift the sanction, as I was saying, and

         19  we did that in April in 1,600 cases. So, those

         20  people are on the next day --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Quickly meaning

         22  --

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  DIAMOND: The next day.

         25                 If there is a case closing that is an
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          2  error, we can do that in a day or two also.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Lastly, I will

          4  not ask about any resolutions. And I'm not a lawyer

          5  like Council Member Martinez, so I have to learn to

          6  word things correctly.

          7                 Your personal opinion and analysis,

          8  as someone who has served in two administrations, do

          9  you think that the executive branch of our State

         10  government understands the impact on New York City

         11  of potential changes in public assistance that the

         12  Governor is proposing?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  DIAMOND: As I think you know, the City hasn't taken

         15  a position on the Governor's proposals, and I'm not

         16  prepared to do so here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, that's

         18  why I carefully did not ask you did you -- what's

         19  your position; I asked you do you think they

         20  understand the impact on New York City, even in

         21  material terms, financial terms, human terms? Do you

         22  have any reason to believe that is understood as

         23  they're trying to make this decision?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  DIAMOND: I'm not going to speculate on what people's
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          2  motives or what they know or don't know. We can look

          3  at the proposals they've made and come to decisions

          4  on whether they're right, but what people's motives

          5  I don't think it's appropriate to comment.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I guess

          7  just one quick -- do you believe, as far as you

          8  know, at this moment, does this Administration

          9  intend to take a position before this action might

         10  be taken by the Governor and the Legislature?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  DIAMOND: We have taken a position on the proposal

         13  for SSI, as I think you're aware, the Governor's

         14  proposal to include SSI projects in the income of

         15  the family.

         16                 The others are still under review,

         17  and I don't know.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You don't know

         19  if you will take a position or not?

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  DIAMOND: I don't know.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         23                 Council Member Martinez, do you have

         24  any follow-ups?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, thank

          3  you, Commissioner, very much. We appreciate your

          4  time.

          5                 Before the next panel, I think we

          6  have almost everyone on General Welfare here, we're

          7  going to do a quick vote.

          8                 We're going to vote to file

          9  Resolution 155-A, which allowed for this hearing,

         10  and although a little later on we're going to hear

         11  about Resolution 154 opposing some of the recent

         12  proposals by the Governor related to public

         13  assistance, because we have quorum now we're going

         14  to go ahead and vote that resolution.

         15                 I know everyone has had a chance to

         16  consider it in advance, so we're going to go ahead

         17  and vote on that resolution. So, we'll be voting on

         18  together the filing 155-A and voting on 154.

         19                 Will the clerk please call the roll.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye. I'd like

          4  to add my name to Reso 154.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye. And I

          7  would also like to have my name added to the

          8  resolutions.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Serrano.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         12  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         13  abstentions, both items are adopted. Council

         14  Members, please sign the Committee reports.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And let's also

         16  keep the roll open.  We'll make sure our last member

         17  is alerted.

         18                 Well, Council Member Martinez, it's

         19  true that you're popular, everyone wants to sign

         20  onto the resolution. You must be right.

         21                 I will call forward the next panel

         22  now. This is continuing on 155-A. And we have a

         23  three-person panel.

         24                 Let me immediately say the first

         25  member of this panel is Ms. B, who is a public
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          2  assistance recipient, and has asked for

          3  confidentiality. So, I'd like to ask our friends at

          4  Crosswalks to turn off the camera for this section.

          5                 We appreciate your help --

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: NYC TV.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: What?

          8                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: NYC TV.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: NYC TV, my

         10  apology. And I know we've had previous discussion

         11  with the panel about doing so. So, thank you.

         12                 Ms. B. Ricki Blum, of Legal Aid, and

         13  Meena Ramtahal, if I'm saying that right.

         14                 Council Member Brewer, I don't think

         15  we formally welcomed you. I would like to formally

         16  welcome you.

         17                 Please eat your food off to the side.

         18  You're more than welcome.

         19                 We welcome this panel, and whoever

         20  you would like to begin. And Ms. B, we want to thank

         21  you very much in particular. We know it's a very

         22  sensitive situation. We appreciate you taking the

         23  time. We appreciate your strength and courage in

         24  coming forward, and we are very much going to make

         25  sure we maintain confidentiality in this process.
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          2                 MS. B: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We welcome your

          4  testimony.

          5                 MS. B: Okay, my name is Ms. B. I

          6  suffer with a disability. I have hardening of the

          7  arteries, with unstable angina. As of recently, they

          8  had me with the HS system, that's a disability where

          9  I'm not able to work, and I was going through the

         10  process of being re-evaluated again with my doctor,

         11  and I had to submit some paperwork in to them. I was

         12  unable to make it because of my illness, and I faxed

         13  the paperwork over to the system.

         14                 I had the clinic fax it over to them

         15  that Monday, by that Friday the paperwork was due. I

         16  went back and refaxed it over to them. The next

         17  thing, i received a letter from the HS system,

         18  stating that I did not comply with the rules and

         19  regulations, and they would send a letter back to

         20  the public assistance saying I didn't comply.

         21                 I went to the HS system, with a

         22  verification of the copy of the fax that was sent to

         23  them, a receipt from the fax machine that the

         24  paperwork was sent. They said there was nothing they

         25  could do, I had to wait for a letter from the public

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  assistance to come in for a conference to rectify

          3  the situation.

          4                 That was back on in April. By May

          5  28th, my oldest daughter is 18, she had a Begin

          6  appointment. When I went in there with her, I also

          7  went to find out why I hadn't received any

          8  notification from the public assistance about what

          9  happened with the HS system. That's when they

         10  notified me that my case was closed.

         11                 I got no notification from them. The

         12  only thing they told me is the only thing you had to

         13  do was reapply.

         14                 In the closing that took away my

         15  Jiggetts, cash money, in June I was lucky enough to

         16  get my stamps, but as far as cash was concerned, I

         17  didn't receive any cash.

         18                 I called for the fair hearing on the

         19  28th because I was so upset that they closed my case

         20  without notifying me about it, and once again I told

         21  the lady at the fair hearing that I would have to

         22  reapply to get my benefits back.

         23                 They did send me a letter stating to

         24  come in for a conference to try to rectify the

         25  situation, which I did do that. I received a letter
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          2  from fair hearing for an appointment on June 22nd,

          3  and last, I think it was last week, Wednesday, I

          4  went down for the conference with the public

          5  assistance, to try to get my benefits back.

          6                 I went in there, I had a 3:00

          7  appointment. I went in there at 11:00 so I can get

          8  in and get out early, because I had to pick my

          9  daughter up, I was in there from 11:00 in the

         10  morning until almost 5:00 in the evening on them to

         11  call me.

         12                 Situations like this is very

         13  stressing to me because of my illness. By the time

         14  they did call me, all the lady would look up on the

         15  system and say, Ms. Brown, we're reopening up your

         16  case as of two days ago.

         17                 So, to me, it was just a waste for me

         18  to have to sit there for them to rectify the

         19  situation that they already made -- they already

         20  made me and my family suffer behind. If they're sit

         21  in here and state that they felt I didn't comply or

         22  they felt comply like HS system told them, I could

         23  have rectified it before they even touched my case,

         24  because this is what I live off of, okay? Like I

         25  said, this took away my Jiggetts, it took away my
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          2  cash, you know, and I had to run to get my benefits

          3  back. Thank God I did get it back.

          4                 Now, I still have an appointment for

          5  June 22nd, the caseworker said I don't have to go if

          6  I don't want to, but I think to cover myself I will

          7  be there. Definitely. Definitely, you know. But this

          8  is the things that the system puts you through when

          9  it's uncalled for.

         10                 For giving them a documentation for

         11  medical records stating that you're not able to

         12  work, and they still, the HS system it's a lot, it's

         13  a lot to handle. You have to report to them on a

         14  weekly basis. Every time you go to the doctor. And

         15  if you don't call them, they're telling you you

         16  didn't comply. I'm not understanding how the system

         17  is running. But I know for something that was not my

         18  fault, and for me to have the documentations to show

         19  that I did comply, there was nothing that the HS

         20  system could do to call the center to stop them from

         21  even touching my case, and I paid a price for it,

         22  they closed my case up. And I'm still sitting,

         23  waiting on the money from the end of May. I haven't

         24  received the money that they took from me from the

         25  end of May.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me ask you

          3  again, Ms. B, and, again, I appreciate when someone

          4  tells us exactly what's happening of their own

          5  personal experience, the most powerful way for us to

          6  understand what we have to do to improve this

          7  system.

          8                 So, you're saying that you not only

          9  explained to caseworkers, but you provides the

         10  evidence of your medical condition.

         11                 MS. B: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And, yet, they

         13  still ultimately cut you off --

         14                 MS. B: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: -- From

         16  benefits.

         17                 So, when you were talking to the

         18  various personnel of HRA, did anyone acknowledge to

         19  you that your condition was the kind of thing that

         20  would have required you to get support from the

         21  City?

         22                 MS. B: The public assistance know my

         23  situation. I've been with the HS system. I even

         24  tried to go to the Begin Program to try to work, and

         25  this was back in last year and I tried to work, I

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  would up back in the hospital, okay? My condition, I

          3  suffer with unstable angina, that means I have

          4  attacks at any time. There is no special time when I

          5  can get ill. I take nytril under the tongue. I

          6  provide them with all the documents that they need,

          7  you know, and sometimes it still seems like it's not

          8  enough.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Did anyone

         10  along the way, any kind of authority acknowledge

         11  that you had provided the right material and that

         12  you did have a serious condition?

         13                 MS. B: I spoke with the supervisor at

         14  the HS system when I received the letter stating

         15  that they said I didn't comply.

         16                 I went to them the next day with the

         17  truth, the facts, and the lady said, well, Ms. Brown

         18  there's nothing we can do, you have to wait until

         19  public assistance sends you a letter. That's what I

         20  sat back and I did, and by the time I went in there

         21  on the 28th with my daughter, for her appointment,

         22  and I inquired about my case, because I hadn't heard

         23  nothing from this system, the lady told me that my

         24  case was closed two days ago.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So no one said

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  we made a mistake here. We have to go fix this?

          3                 MS. B: No, the lady at the HS system

          4  said when they call me in to tell them to give me a

          5  good cause, and they will start me back where I left

          6  off at, which is with the HS system. They won't

          7  start me at the beginning of the HS system.

          8                 She told me there was nothing that

          9  they could do, the letter already was mailed out to

         10  the public assistance.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Unbelievable.

         12                 All right, we'd like to hear from the

         13  other members of the panel.

         14                 Who would like to go first? Please.

         15  And please bring the microphone close to you.

         16                 Thank you. We welcome you and we

         17  thank you for being here. We welcome your testimony.

         18                 MS. RAMTAHAL: My name is Meena

         19  Ramtahal. I'm a public assistance recipient, and

         20  even though I have a four-year degree in business

         21  management, I have been struggling on my own and the

         22  Job Search program to find employment.

         23                 In January I got a letter from HRA

         24  and the car fare was stopped. My cash benefits were

         25  discontinued in March. Even without car fare in
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          2  January, continued to work to go to my work

          3  assignments at the Department of Education, because

          4  I'm determined to be employed there.

          5                 I was accused of noncompliance by my

          6  caseworker, even though I had fully complied. This

          7  mistake on the part of my caseworker caused me to be

          8  sanctioned for two and a half months, during which

          9  time I had two fair hearings to dispute my case, I

         10  was looking for work, and surviving on the bare

         11  minimum.

         12                 At this point my rent was not being

         13  paid for and my landlord wouldn't renew my lease.

         14  HRA didn't give me anything during this time in the

         15  form of cash, not even for my son, and they reduced

         16  my food stamps by 44 dollars. I had to rely on the

         17  leftover items that I saved up, and my mother helped

         18  me with some cash to pay my phone bills and other

         19  necessities, and I had to limit my travel expenses,

         20  thus limit my job search.

         21                 In May, I won the fair hearing, and

         22  currently my benefits have been restored. Right now

         23  I am waiting for HRA to reinstate me to the

         24  Department of Education. This whole process has

         25  caused me much stress in my living situation and a
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          2  setback in my job search.

          3                 In my case, I was wrongfully

          4  sanctioned like thousands of other people on

          5  welfare. It is not fair to cause such stress in a

          6  person's life when it is not their fault. There

          7  should be better methods utilized in this process.

          8                 In many cases, people like me are not

          9  even notified because they are sanctioned. Members

         10  of Community Voices Heard, like myself, have come up

         11  with an alternative policy that would be less

         12  harmful to the families involved unless they are

         13  proven guilty. We have copies of this policy and my

         14  testimony for your consideration.

         15                 Thank you for your time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, thank

         17  you.

         18                 And let me ask you, you said that

         19  there was a mistake on the part of the caseworker.

         20  Can you describe what they missed in your

         21  application or how the mistake occurred?

         22                 MS. RAMTAHAL: They didn't give --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Speak close to

         24  the mic.

         25                 MS. RAMTAHAL: They didn't give me a
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          2  letter that my case would be sanctioned, and when I

          3  went to the Begin appointment, the worker read a

          4  statement that my worker said that I wasn't giving

          5  her my resume to update it every week, I wasn't

          6  getting interviews. Everywhere, most letters they

          7  sent back to me that they don't have a position for

          8  me, and I don't need my resume to be updated every

          9  week. I gave her my resume, my disk to print of my

         10  resume and she refused in front of her supervisor.

         11  She said this is the fourth time you've come in

         12  here, I told, no, it's the second time. And she said

         13  seven times I updated your resume already, I told

         14  you, you didn't update my resume none time. I

         15  usually did it myself, and I usually take it to a

         16  girl on the family support side, Nancy Siegel, and

         17  she usually helps me with my printing and what have

         18  you. She never did anything to me. That's what she

         19  said.

         20                 So, I told the worker, the Begin

         21  worker, she is lying. That's not true. So she told

         22  me to get to her supervisor to get a letter from

         23  him. Told me that I'm not going to give you a

         24  letter, I will call the Begin worker. The Begin

         25  worker told me she will send a letter to me next two
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          2  weeks. She didn't send a letter. I checked the time

          3  and I went in and then she said that, the supervisor

          4  said he is not going to give her the letter, because

          5  I reported this out to the agency.

          6                 So, I did, I wrote a letter to send

          7  to members, I think they contacted them. That's it.

          8                 And then the recruits give me job

          9  training. I say I have a degree why do I have to go

         10  on job training?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: When you did

         12  win your fair hearing, how quickly were your

         13  benefits restored?

         14                 MS. RAMTAHAL: About a week, week and

         15  a half.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And how long

         17  were you waiting to get that hearing again?

         18                 MS. RAMTAHAL: I request my hearing. I

         19  didn't get a notice or a schedule. I sent a second

         20  request then I got it last in March, then I was

         21  waiting for a decision, just passed the time, like

         22  three weeks, and I wrote them back and I got the

         23  decision.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Mr. Blum, did you have some testimony

          3  as well?

          4                 MR. BLUM: Thank you. Richard Blum

          5  from Legal Aid Society.

          6                 First I just wanted to relay the

          7  experience of another client of the Legal Aid

          8  Society who was unable to come today, and then just

          9  offer a few clarifications on the prior testimony of

         10  the agency.

         11                 One of our families who are clients

         12  of the Legal Aid Society experienced a sanction for

         13  failing to come to an employment intake appointment

         14  because she did not receive the appointment notices,

         15  which is a very typical experience for our clients.

         16                 She found out about the sanction from

         17  a hidden notice having to do with something else

         18  that alluded to the sanction indirectly. This is the

         19  first time that they found out there was a problem.

         20  So, they had already been reduced by the time they

         21  found out about it, and they only found out about it

         22  by accident.

         23                 The family went to the center and

         24  explained that she hadn't received any prior

         25  notices, and she was eight months pregnant. They
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          2  told her the problem would be corrected and the

          3  sanction would be lifted. You've heard about that

          4  process today. Except that it didn't happen the next

          5  day, in fact, it didn't happen at all, which is much

          6  more typical of our experience, in fact, I've never

          7  heard of a next day fixing of an error ever, except

          8  under the most emergent circumstances with heavy,

          9  heavy advocacy.

         10                 So, nothing was done at the center to

         11  correct the problem. The director's office was

         12  notified, the center took the position then

         13  subsequently that they made the right decision,

         14  having already said that they had made the wrong

         15  decision. She was represented in a fair hearing by

         16  us and the decision was reversed.

         17                 Then they received another notice --

         18  this time they actually did receive a notice of

         19  intent -- stating that the household benefits would

         20  be reduced because the husband had failed to go to

         21  an HS systems appointment, while the husband is a

         22  recipient of Social Security Disability payments. In

         23  other words, he's been found disabled by the federal

         24  government, and the only reason he is on the welfare

         25  budget is that a rule that he's required to be on
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          2  the budget, together with the rest of the family,

          3  the only exception is that if you're in receipt of

          4  SSI. So, but he's been found, he's been adjudicated

          5  disabled by the federal government, and yet HS

          6  systems is calling him in. Of course, he hadn't

          7  received the appointment notice for that either. So,

          8  then he received a notice saying that the job or

          9  training activity that he was being referred to

         10  requires a medical examination. They decided that he

         11  had willfully and without good cause failed to show

         12  up for the medical examination. Again, the local

         13  welfare center was contacted, the Office of Legal

         14  Affairs of HRA was contacted. HRA refused to

         15  withdraw its notice, even after the situation was

         16  explained. He requested a fair hearing and we were

         17  able to win the fair hearing.

         18                 He again received another notice of

         19  intent for failure to show to another HS systems

         20  appointment, to which he had not received any

         21  appointment letter, and so forth, and we're working

         22  on resolving it. I think you get the idea.

         23                 I mean, the problem is, not only

         24  aren't these errors fixed right on the spot when

         25  they happen, but then there's no fixing of the
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          2  problem so that it won't recur. This is true of

          3  mailing cases, it's true of disability cases. There

          4  is no procedure in place at all for a correction on

          5  an existing error to lead to a correction of the

          6  underlying problem. So that even if at the

          7  conciliation, at the conference, at the fair

          8  hearing, the City says, oh, it was sent to the wrong

          9  address, for example, there was no process to then

         10  change the address in the system. In other words,

         11  there is no procedure to report back and say that

         12  you got the wrong address, here is the right

         13  address, fix it now. So that people get these same

         14  problems going on over and over again, it's sort of

         15  like gotcha. We've had clients where they win their

         16  first two hearings on the wrong address, and then

         17  they lose the third one. So, at some point you'll

         18  just get a bad judge. It doesn't take that long to

         19  get around to that, and you'll just lose.

         20                 In addition, and this goes to the

         21  clarification, on the addresses, I think that these

         22  are some questions that, Mr. Chairman, you were

         23  asking before, there are two different addresses in

         24  the system, and this is appropriate, one is a

         25  mailing address, the other one is a residence
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          2  address. The residence addresses the address for

          3  which they're paying rent. That may not be a good

          4  address to receive mail, so you may have a different

          5  address, eventually a Post Office box, another

          6  friend, who knows. Most people, for most people it's

          7  the same address.

          8                 There is nothing in the system that

          9  requires, nothing in the computer system that

         10  requires that when you fix, when you update a

         11  residence address, that you also update or even

         12  inquire about the mailing address. So that

         13  frequently, especially people in the homeless

         14  system, will have the residence address corrected,

         15  so the payments are going to the right landlord, the

         16  payments are going to the right shelter, but

         17  meanwhile they're still sending the mail to the old

         18  address, the intake, the assessment unit for

         19  homeless system, for example. And then they'll go to

         20  a hearing and they'll say that you never reported

         21  change of address, meanwhile they're paying the rent

         22  to the correct address, they knew about it and

         23  there's nothing in the system that requires them to

         24  even inquire whether the mailing address should be

         25  updated when they change the residence address. So,

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  there's an argument, that, oh, yes, we have a deep

          3  concern about making sure the payments go - well,

          4  that's true, but the two aren't linked. So this

          5  problem is a constantly recurring problem,

          6  especially for people in the shelter system, and

          7  people who have unstable mailing and residence

          8  addresses.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you have

         10  some helpful suggestions about how HRA can go about

         11  improving that situation?

         12                 MR. BLUM: Well, two things: One is

         13  they need to have simply a procedure set up for

         14  reporting back mistakes to the correct people who

         15  can then fix them. I mean, that's a question of a

         16  personnel procedure. Person A is assigned the task,

         17  when at the fair hearing they believe it's the wrong

         18  address, reporting to person B who then inputs it in

         19  the system and it's corrected.

         20                 Second, any time a residence change

         21  of address is reported, by any means, whether it's

         22  by a shelter or anyone else, they should be

         23  required, and the computer system should be

         24  programmed to prompt this, to inquire whether there

         25  needs to be a change in the mailing address, and
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          2  they should have to input, you know, know that it

          3  doesn't need to be or put in the change address.

          4                 Even until that's done, then the

          5  state would probably have to make those computer

          6  changes, but even until that's done, to at least do

          7  it manually and have an instruction to their workers

          8  that they have to make that inquiry. They don't do

          9  that currently.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         11  Brewer, has a comment/question.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I was just

         13  going to say, it's an easy database change. So,

         14  maybe we could work to get that done.

         15                 MR. BLUM: One would think, yes.

         16                 In addition, one of the other

         17  requests that we have been making for many years,

         18  first under what was then the benefits transfer

         19  system, now under the new one, is that notification

         20  of upcoming appointments be in the system, the same

         21  system to which you get the benefits, so when you

         22  pick up the benefits, you also get something telling

         23  you, by the way, next month you have an appointment,

         24  or next week you have an appointment. Even something

         25  that much that you can call in, with a phone number
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          2  that you can call in to get the details. Because

          3  people can access their benefits and they can go to

          4  an ATM, they can go to the system and they'll get

          5  their benefits. That's the one sure system for

          6  communicating with the client, is the benefit

          7  delivery system. HRA has not worked out with the

          8  state a way to avail themselves of that

          9  communication opportunity or that technology before.

         10  They have not done that. The State has not done

         11  that, there has been no effort to do that, no

         12  interest in doing that. So, here is a readily

         13  available method for communicating with clients in

         14  the most certain way you possibly can and it's not

         15  being used.

         16                 A couple of other quick comments, on

         17  the Commissioner's testimony which go to these

         18  experiences that you're hearing about. These are not

         19  isolated incidents, this is very typical, what we

         20  see.

         21                 Number one, in terms of the data that

         22  was presented, the people who are exempt from the

         23  work requirement because of disabilities or any

         24  other reasons, are not within their statistics for

         25  the work program. So, if you're called in for an HS
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          2  systems appointment, for example, to reevaluate you

          3  for your exemption for the umpteenth time to make

          4  sure that your angina suddenly hasn't just, you

          5  know, quickly improved against all medical

          6  expectations, in the last two months, three most

          7  likely, if you don't show up to that appointment,

          8  you're not factored into the data on work programs.

          9  It's deemed an eligibility failure. So, when you see

         10  the numbers on eligibility, that includes all of the

         11  disabled people dealing with HS systems.

         12                 Number two, there is no conciliation

         13  available for people in that category. It doesn't

         14  apply to them under this City's and State's

         15  understanding of the law, so I don't think it's

         16  correct.

         17                 Third, they also, the conference, as

         18  opposed to, the two different kinds of conferences,

         19  the kind of conference you have to sue them to get

         20  them to do, which is the voluntary conference on

         21  their part, which is the alternative dispute

         22  resolution. Those conferences they refuse to do once

         23  the action has been taken. So, if you didn't get

         24  that notice of intent, and you come in and say, you

         25  know, here I am, they'll say, sorry, it's too late,
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          2  go do a fair hearing.

          3                 In other words, you have a ten-day

          4  window, if you do get to know this, within which to

          5  do the conference. So, there's a very limited period

          6  of time, only it depends on the notice having gone

          7  out to the correct address and having been received.

          8                 They also have, of course, this

          9  mandatory dispute resolution mechanism, which they

         10  set up some time after we sued them over not having

         11  dispute resolution, only they've made it mandatory

         12  so that if you don't show up they try to use that.

         13  The State hasn't really gone along with this game,

         14  but the City has tried to use that to argue, though,

         15  if you didn't show up to that, that's also an

         16  infraction. Not to showing up, to resolve the

         17  dispute in advance of the fair hearing, because we

         18  made a mistake is something we can then try to cut

         19  off your case for.

         20                 So, that's another little detail in

         21  the system that was described to know about.

         22                 The last two things I just want to

         23  mention are, number one, one of the most common

         24  reasons we see for sanctions or case closings is the

         25  failure to report. This person simply doesn't show
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          2  up.

          3                 Obviously, there are a number of

          4  reasons why this could happen, and most especially

          5  for people with health problems. You may have seen

          6  from the appointment notice, there is no mechanism

          7  to simply call in and say I couldn't come in earlier

          8  today or yesterday, because I had a severe asthma

          9  attack, because I'm suffering from depression, I've

         10  had a depressive episode, or any kind of acute --

         11  angina attack, any kind of acute episode of a

         12  chronic condition that they know about that's

         13  already documented, that's in their effort, you

         14  cannot do that.

         15                 It is only through the sanction

         16  process or through the case closing processes that

         17  you try to resolve that dispute.

         18                 In other words, as soon as you don't

         19  show up, unless the computer is told that it's okay,

         20  or that it's being rescheduled for example, the

         21  computer automatically initiates the process toward

         22  a closing, or toward a sanction.

         23                 And that's the only way, the train is

         24  moving already at that point, and there is no way to

         25  have prevented that from happening under that very
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          2  classic situation where you have an acute episode of

          3  a chronic condition, so you didn't know that you

          4  wouldn't be able to come in but you can't.

          5                 I had a client, this is a very

          6  typical experience, I've had a number of these, you

          7  know, asthma attack on an 87 degree August day,

          8  lives in the top of a walk-up, not supposed to go to

          9  a doctor and get a doctor's note, no, he's supposed

         10  to take the asthma meds and go to bed. That's what

         11  the client did. The client also called into a number

         12  and was told, well, you'll get a letter, of course

         13  the letter is a closing letter.

         14                 I had to do a reopen fair hearing,

         15  this client had lost the hearing, the two-minute and

         16  15 second hearing that the client had, most of which

         17  was in English because the client doesn't speak, and

         18  then I had to get it reopened and then coming a

         19  weather report and with the phone records showing

         20  that the client had made the phone call and so

         21  forth, it was extraordinary, obviously, most people

         22  are not equipped to do this. I'm not patting myself

         23  on the back, but I've learned a thing or two over

         24  the years. So, you really have to be an

         25  extraordinary advocate to get out of that hole, the
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          2  way the system is designed. That's the way the

          3  computer system is designed. It is set up to use the

          4  sanction process of the closing process for a

          5  dispute resolution.

          6                 And the last thing I just want to

          7  mention is, you know, getting a case reopened,

          8  getting a problem fixed even after a fair hearing,

          9  is a nightmare. There is litigation. There is a

         10  settlement in the litigation and ongoing compliance

         11  monitoring. In the Parone case, over a fair hearing

         12  compliance by both the State and the City, it has to

         13  do with timeliness of responses to fair hearings.

         14  It's just a chronic problem, lifting a sanction with

         15  a fair hearing compliance, where there is made

         16  continuing violations, to which we also have

         17  litigation, in informal relief system, in all of

         18  these contexts, it just can be like pulling teeth to

         19  get a very simple action, you know, mistake

         20  corrected.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         22                 Council member, do you have any

         23  questions?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I should know

         25  this, but for people who are as knowledgeable as you
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          2  are, and there are many over the years, is there any

          3  advisory discussion that goes on regarding obviously

          4  some of the operational -- obviously, there are

          5  different policy changes, but just in terms of

          6  operational, and I think you have identified quite a

          7  few, is there any kind of advisory input from

          8  persons who are recipients, as well as people who

          9  are advocates?

         10                 MR. BLUM: Well, everything I have

         11  suggested today has been communicated various

         12  occasions by me and others to the agency. You know,

         13  I hope that they are thinking about it, but it's

         14  none of it's been acted on to date.

         15                 There is a legal advisory committee

         16  that meets every other month with the lawyers for

         17  HRA. I'm part of that.

         18                 There's also a community advisory

         19  committee, I think folks from Community Voices Heard

         20  are on that, and can speak better to how that is

         21  functional well or not. I am not participating in

         22  it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right.

         24  There are several opportunities, but not necessarily

         25  acted upon, okay.
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          2                 MR. BLUM: We can make our

          3  recommendations and see what happens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me also ask

          7  you, and this is something Council Member Brewer

          8  will appreciate, and maybe she knows this answer. I

          9  was very struck in my role on the Education

         10  Committee, I was very struck by the various claims

         11  that were made about the amount of computer usage

         12  among New York City public school students and their

         13  families, which there's growing evidence is

         14  extraordinary, despite a variety of economic factors

         15  and immigration and all sorts of other factors, one

         16  might think would complicate this situation.

         17                 Do you have any sense when you think

         18  about the clients that you've worked with over the

         19  years, of how many folks actually have computer

         20  capacity in their homes?

         21                 MR. BLUM: In their homes? Oh, I have

         22  no idea.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Or access,

         24  let's just put it this way. Ready access?

         25                 MR. BLUM: I think to the library
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          2  system, most of my clients who use a computer use it

          3  either through a school or through a library.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I mean, I guess

          5  my point would be, and it parallels with your point

          6  about the ATMs and other, you know, here we have the

          7  ability, I think we have more and more people in our

          8  society learning how to use computers effectively,

          9  and hopefully more and more access, and I know

         10  Council Member Brewer and the Technology Committee

         11  are working on that.

         12                 But I guess the point would be even

         13  if it made a dent in the problem, if the ability to

         14  track the information and assess the system to

         15  report, for example, let's take that same exact

         16  asthma situation, I happen to be an asthma sufferer

         17  myself, so I can absolutely relate to that, if by

         18  chance that person had a computer or a family member

         19  had a computer, there was some way to report in so

         20  it was written, it was dated, it was something

         21  rather substantial, that seems to me as something

         22  that could actually help improve the verification of

         23  the current situation, and perhaps certain things

         24  like address changes or address verifications,

         25  include the possibility of accuracy, as opposed to
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          2  verbal communication or too many things written by

          3  hand.

          4                 So, I mean, I think it's something we

          5  should pursue, but do you think that there's some

          6  possibility there's enough clients who have access

          7  in one form or another that would be helpful?

          8                 MR. BLUM: I think there are some

          9  number of people that would be helpful for,

         10  obviously. I mean, we have clients who don't have

         11  telephones.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Clearly.

         13                 MR. BLUM: So, you know, it's a mixed

         14  bag.

         15                 I should say that, you know, to their

         16  credit HRA has actually implemented some computer

         17  systems internally that help them track things a

         18  little bit better, and, I mean, they're working on

         19  this paperless office system which has, you know,

         20  it's a slow process and we've been pointing out a

         21  lot of problems with it along the way, but at least

         22  I think the concept is a good one that, you know,

         23  should track documents much better. I mean,

         24  hopefully this is happening in the model centers, in

         25  theory at least, and hopefully we'll have it as that

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  system gets unfolded, but they're going to be

          3  scanning documents when they're brought in and

          4  indexing them.

          5                 Right now, if they're not -- if

          6  they're scanned and indexed, they're in a sort of

          7  limbo, computer limbo where no one can find them,

          8  and so it doesn't help you very much, but that's the

          9  sort of thing that actually will help ultimately, I

         10  think with some pieces of the puzzle.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And on the

         12  phone front, I mean in other words, you mentioned

         13  earlier in the case of the person with asthma, that

         14  you call into an automated system, I presume --

         15                 MR. BLUM: No, it wasn't automated.

         16  There was a human being who just was unhelpful.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. So, my

         18  question is, is there any promise, or has there been

         19  any use of automated systems that someone can call

         20  and sort of log in, like there is a hot line to

         21  call.  If you can't make an appointment, you log in

         22  the time and the reason, and it's like again there's

         23  no specific record that is not lost to someone's

         24  failure to write it down or something?

         25                 MR. BLUM: I'm unaware of any such
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          2  system. And I could say that that's the sort of

          3  thing where some clients might benefit, but an awful

          4  lot of clients need to be speaking to a human being,

          5  just because they're confused and, you know.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes. I would

          7  say all of the above is part of the solution to

          8  offer as many as possible.

          9                 MR. BLUM: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, let me

         11  suggest that we would be happy in the name of the

         12  Committee, and Jackie Sherman could pursue this with

         13  you, to propose the various solutions that you've

         14  just outlined, to the Commissioner, Commissioner

         15  Eggleston, and ask for a response to each in

         16  writing. I think that's -- you know, I know you have

         17  presented it in different ways, but I think we

         18  should continue to have some positive pressure on

         19  getting answers, because it seems like many of your

         20  solutions are quite workable, and I think it would

         21  be great to have HRA actually to respond to them

         22  specifically.

         23                 MR. BLUM: Yes, you know, that would

         24  be wonderful.

         25                 I also think, you know, they are
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          2  unfolding this We Care contract. We have seen the

          3  contract and I think you've seen contracts on it. It

          4  will be very interesting to see what happens with

          5  that. I think often with welfare reform in quotes,

          6  it has to always be in quotes, there is this notion

          7  that most people fit a certain model, you know,

          8  where there are no health problems, no domestic

          9  violence problems, no language problems, educational

         10  problems, no communication problems, and that's the

         11  standard client and anyone else is a deviation or a

         12  special needs population or something like that,

         13  whereas, of course, 99 percent of the population

         14  falls in one or more of those categories. And so you

         15  have a computer system and a bureaucracy that is set

         16  off with a wrong set of assumptions, and it will be

         17  very interesting to see, you know, with the We Care

         18  system, if they're able to actually have the kind of

         19  flexibility that was described, but I've never seen

         20  in reality before. And I guess one example of that

         21  is this 35 hour a week requirement. There are an

         22  awful lot of people who can participate some number

         23  of hours a week in some activity that is helpful to

         24  them. They may be in a vested program, for example.

         25                 The City has been extremely reluctant
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          2  or opposed to reducing hours for people, and

          3  recognizing that maybe some people can participate

          4  but just not for that much, and that requires much

          5  greater flexibility.

          6                 And I realize they may have concerns

          7  about reporting, about participation rates and so

          8  forth, which I think most of which are overblown,

          9  but they just -- again, the idea of it, that's just

         10  not a workable way of proceeding. It still has not

         11  entered into the picture. And with the We Care they

         12  said, okay, with special permission on a

         13  case-by-case basis you could possibly have it

         14  reduced by 35 hours, and that does not reflect the

         15  actual needs of people.

         16                 So, I think you have to go through

         17  that contract and also see how it's implemented and

         18  see if it reflects the reality of people with health

         19  problems.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, thank

         21  you.

         22                 I want to thank the whole panel. Ms.

         23  B, thank you, again, very much. And Ms. Ramtahal, we

         24  appreciate your testimony, and, of course, Mr. Blum.

         25  And we take very seriously what you brought to light
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          2  and we will certainly continue to pursue it with

          3  HRA, and hopefully push some forward solutions.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 MR. BLUM: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right, we

          7  are now going to do the second part of the hearing.

          8  It's one panel. This is related to Reso 154,

          9  opposing the Governor's recent proposed cuts to

         10  public assistance, and other changes to public

         11  assistance that we think would be negative of people

         12  of New York City, and we have a five-person panel.

         13  We're going to ask everyone please to keep your

         14  comments to a couple of minutes each, so that we can

         15  get everyone in.

         16                 We have Kim Gilliland, New York State

         17  Hunger Action Group; am I saying this correctly,

         18  Edline Jacquet? Now that I know that I'm saying it

         19  right, Lenox Hill Neighborhood House; Roxanna Henry

         20  of Welfare Rights Initiative; Jillynn Stevens and

         21  John Hynes. We welcome you all. And I guess we can

         22  go right to left and hear everyone's testimony.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 MS. GILLILAND: I'm going to summarize

         25  my testimony --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We appreciate

          3  that.

          4                 MS. GILLILAND: In the interest of

          5  time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We heard it. We

          7  heard it the first time at the press conference. It

          8  was very good.

          9                 MS. GILLILAND: A little bit longer

         10  this time, but it won't be too bad.

         11                 My name is Kim Gilliland. I'm the

         12  Associate Director of the Hunger Action Network of

         13  New York State. We're a statewide membership

         14  organization working to end hunger, and its root

         15  causes including poverty.

         16                 We appreciate this opportunity to be

         17  here to talk with you today about the proposed

         18  welfare cuts in the Governor's Executive Budget. We

         19  also welcome the opportunity to thank Council Member

         20  Martinez for introducing Resolution 154, as well as

         21  the Council members that have signed on to support

         22  this resolution.

         23                 Governor Pataki's welfare cuts, if

         24  enacted, will be devastating to New York's most

         25  vulnerable families, targeting poor mothers,
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          2  children and families with a disabled member.

          3                 The four proposed cuts combined are

          4  estimated to save the State only $77 million, or

          5  less than two percent of the projected budget

          6  deficit. These four cuts include first full-family

          7  sanction. A full-family sanction cuts the entire

          8  family's public assistance benefits, and the parent

          9  is unable to meet the welfare work requirements.

         10                 Current welfare law already sanctions

         11  the head of households. The only objective of

         12  full-family sanctions is to ensure that the children

         13  suffer as well.

         14                 According to the Children's Defense

         15  Fund, sanctioning poor children makes them two to

         16  five times more likely to suffer low birth weight,

         17  iron deficiency, lead poisoning, stunted growth or a

         18  series of other very serious disabilities.

         19                 Over time, full-family sanctions may

         20  also increase the likelihood of children being

         21  placed in foster care. It would actually cost the

         22  State more money than the savings the Governor

         23  claims will be reached from implementing full-family

         24  sanctions.

         25                 Full-family sanctions not only hurt
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          2  New York's children, they will disproportionately

          3  affect parents who have one or more barriers to

          4  employment, including mental or physical health

          5  problems, limited education or domestic violence

          6  crisis.

          7                 Moreover, full-family sanctions are

          8  not worth the risk, particularly in New York because

          9  sanctions are often misapplied, causing tremendous

         10  harms to families who are in fact in compliance with

         11  program requirements.

         12                 Finally, studies from other states

         13  show that full-family sanctions don't work. There is

         14  no direct evidence that implementing full-family

         15  sanctions is any more effective in making families

         16  meet the required work roles than partial sanctions.

         17                 According to the Governor's

         18  projections, more than 38,000 people in New York

         19  City were impacted by full-family sanctions. Sixty

         20  percent of those folks are children.

         21                 Without access to benefits, New York

         22  City will likely see a significant in the number of

         23  families applying for emergency food and emergency

         24  shelter.

         25                 The second cut is the grant
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          2  reduction. The non-shelter portion of the welfare

          3  grant would be cut by ten percent for families with

          4  children after five years, and after one year for

          5  single adults and childless coupless.

          6                 This proposed cut punishes people

          7  whose disabilities, low literacy, domestic violence

          8  or other serious problems make it difficult to leave

          9  the welfare rolls.

         10                 The welfare grant is already too

         11  little to live on. In New York City the $691 monthly

         12  grant for a family of three brings a family to less

         13  than 80 percent of the federal poverty level.

         14                 Any cut to benefits would place

         15  thousands of people in deeper poverty and at risk of

         16  becoming homeless.

         17                 The Governor's Office projects that

         18  more than 232,000 people would be impacted by the

         19  grant reduction, 49 percent are children.

         20                 The third cut is reducing the earned

         21  income disregard. This proposed cut targets employed

         22  welfare recipients who are following all the rules,

         23  by phasing out the earned income disregard.

         24                 According to the Governor's Office,

         25  more than 23,000 poor hard-working New Yorkers would
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          2  lose benefits, over 60 percent would be children.

          3                 This proposed reduction eliminates

          4  the financial incentive for families to seek and

          5  maintain employment.

          6                 It also implies that working families

          7  intentionally keep their wages low, so that they can

          8  continue to receive public assistance.

          9                 Instead of supporting working

         10  parents, the proposal would punish them because

         11  their wages have not risen enough to take them

         12  completely off of welfare.

         13                 Furthermore, as Congress works to

         14  reauthorize TANF, it is important to note that the

         15  earned income disregard can help states meet the

         16  federal work participation rates, by keeping paid

         17  employed workers in the TANF caseload longer.

         18                 Finally, the fourth cut involves

         19  budgeting SSI recipients in the welfare household.

         20                 This proposal seeks to treat SSI

         21  recipients as part of the public assistance

         22  household, rather than continuing their invisibility

         23  in welfare budget determinations.

         24                 Households with an SSI recipient

         25  often have added expenses, including transportation,
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          2  special diets, and other household items not covered

          3  by Medicaid.

          4                 The longstanding invisibility rule at

          5  least gave families a fighting chance to meet those

          6  needs.

          7                 The Governor estimates that over

          8  26,000 families in the State will lose an average of

          9  $90 per month.

         10                 These cuts will impact New York City.

         11                 With nearly 70 percent of the welfare

         12  caseload, families and children in New York City

         13  will be disproportionately impacted by these

         14  proposed welfare cuts.

         15                 Reducing or terminating welfare

         16  benefits will leave many families in deeper crisis,

         17  forcing them to turn to the shelter system, as well

         18  as the emergency food programs and other emergency

         19  services funded by the City.

         20                 New York City will likely see a

         21  significant increase in costs if these proposed cuts

         22  are enacted.

         23                 With such a significant portion of

         24  the welfare caseload, it is critical that New York

         25  City speaks out against the proposed cuts. They will
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          2  be devastating to our most vulnerable families, and

          3  they will come at a significant cost to the City.

          4                 We commend the Council Members who

          5  have supported resolution 154, and urge the Council

          6  to pass this resolution immediately.

          7                 We also urge the City Council to make

          8  its opposition to the cuts known to Assembly Speaker

          9  Silver, Senate Majority Leader Bruno and Governor

         10  Pataki, as well as to Commissioner Door, of the

         11  State Office of Temporary and Disability Assistance.

         12                 New York City can be decisive in

         13  protecting poor New Yorkers and their own City

         14  budget from these punitive welfare cuts.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Now, tell me, as your next witness is

         19  ready, would you pronounce your name so I can see if

         20  I did it right or not?

         21                 MS. JACQUET: You pronounced it

         22  correctly the first time. It's Edline.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Say again?

         24                 MS. JACQUET: It's pronounced Edline.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Did I get the
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          2  Jacquet part right?

          3                 MS. JACQUET: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. One out

          5  of two.

          6                 MS. JACQUET: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is Edline Jacquet, and I'm a legal advocate/outreach

          8  worker at Lenox Neighborhood House. We are the

          9  largest provider of social and educational services

         10  on the Upper East Side. We serve about 20,000

         11  clients and families a year, including many families

         12  who are public assistance recipients, and we have a

         13  large number of clients who would be greatly

         14  impacted by the Governor's proposed cuts.

         15                 I'm also going to sum up --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Please.

         17                 MS. JACQUET: -- My testimony also.

         18                 I'm also the current Chair of the

         19  City Issues Committee of the Welfare Reform Network,

         20  which is a prominent advocacy group that tries to

         21  advocate for humane income security policies.

         22                 And I want to thank the Councilman

         23  Martinez for proposing and the other Council members

         24  who supported resolution 154.

         25                 Basically what I would like to talk
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          2  about is the effect of actual clients I work with. I

          3  work with homeless people, as well as senior

          4  citizens, and a lot of times in my Department we

          5  assist people, do legal advocacy in helping them in

          6  fair hearings. So, I'm very familiar with how the

          7  effects of the cuts will affect different

          8  individuals.

          9                 And I wanted to kind of really focus

         10  on the fact that these cuts disproportionately

         11  affect people who are the most needy, in regards to

         12  the way they're targeted.

         13                 For example, a ten percent reduction

         14  of the non-shelter portion of the grant would

         15  significantly impact single adults, and the majority

         16  of the homeless people I work with are single

         17  adults, and basically these people are just barely

         18  making it as it is.

         19                 The meager amount of cash they get is

         20  a lot of times what's used to cover their rent

         21  because of the shelter grant that they received, the

         22  shelter allowance is allotted is often way too --

         23  it's not proportionate at all to what the rent that

         24  they need to pay, and this also was used to pay

         25  their other basic needs.
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          2                 So, basically this could result in

          3  increasing homelessness, I think.

          4                 Just because of the fact that people

          5  will have a lot less, a lot less than they already

          6  have. I mean, people think ten percent is nothing,

          7  but when you're only getting $68.50 every two weeks,

          8  that's a huge amount.

          9                 Also, I wanted to talk about the

         10  other grant reduction which would be full family

         11  sanctions, and this would obviously affect children,

         12  because most of the heads of households of the

         13  families we see are the parents, so the only person

         14  really getting any money cut off would be the

         15  children. And most of the children that attend our

         16  programs, we run a Head Start program as well as a

         17  day care program, as well as after school programs,

         18  because we're a settlement house, and basically most

         19  of the children that we serve, that our agency

         20  serves are under 12. So, this would have a serious

         21  affect if their whole grant was cut off, because,

         22  you know, generally parents would have no other

         23  source of income. Most people only depend on this

         24  source of income to meet their basic needs, and, you

         25  know, I mean, I think it's clear, targets children
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          2  that are the largest group of recipients. The

          3  largest group of recipients generally on public

          4  assistance, but they would also be the most

          5  adversely affected.

          6                 We also run a WEP program there,

          7  called Project Opportunity, and one of the cuts

          8  we're concerned about is the reduction in the

          9  earned, the decrease in the earned income disregard.

         10  These basically -- unfortunately, as Council Member

         11  Lopez said, we work with a lot of mentally ill

         12  people who feel that they can work, and they want to

         13  work, and the majority, I think a majority of people

         14  on public assistance eventually want to go back to

         15  work. They will often take jobs, despite our best

         16  efforts, to get them living wage jobs, take minimum

         17  wage or low-wage jobs, and they believe these jobs

         18  are not enough for them to survive, and so they

         19  continue to be eligible for public assistance, and

         20  with the disregard, they're able to have income for

         21  their families. I think they also want to be good

         22  role models for their children, because that

         23  specifically affects people who have children who

         24  are working.

         25                 So, that, we've seen, would be a
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          2  terrible cut, and also sends the wrong message. The

          3  City wants people to work, yet in a way the state is

          4  punishing you for having a low-wage job, and kind of

          5  saying it's your fault you can't get a higher wage

          6  job.

          7                 The other cut we're concerned about

          8  obviously is the SSI and visibility. We are very

          9  encouraged at the fact that the City has come up

         10  publicly against that. HRA has come up publicly

         11  against that cut, because I think they realize, too,

         12  that I mean, the majority people on SSI are disabled

         13  or blind, or aged. So these would be very vulnerable

         14  populations, we have a real decrease in the amount

         15  of income they actually receive.

         16                 And basically I just wanted to say

         17  that it's unfortunate that these cuts that people

         18  who are proposing them, as Kim said, the savings

         19  would be minimal, but the risks to people and their

         20  families, especially vulnerable, disabled, homeless

         21  people, very low income but hard-working families,

         22  would be the people who would most likely be

         23  negatively affected.

         24                 And you could, you know, really, not

         25  just theoretically, see an increase in homelessness,
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          2  and possibly foster care placement due to child

          3  neglect, because people have no money to care for

          4  their children.

          5                 So, we strongly thank and support the

          6  Council for proposing Resolution 154, and we hope

          7  you continue to do so. And we would also encourage

          8  you to push HRA to come out to oppose the other

          9  three proposed cuts.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MS. HENRY: Hello. My name is Roxanna

         14  Henry, and I wish I would have had a chance to

         15  testify in front of Seth Diamond and some of our

         16  Council members.

         17                 Okay, I am one of the many thousands

         18  of people who are directly affected by the current

         19  decisions regarding welfare. I am a single parent on

         20  public assistance, working hard to earn a college

         21  degree, and working even harder maintaining a good

         22  standing grade point average.

         23                 As a student leader at Welfare Rights

         24  Initiative, a grassroot organization that mobilizes

         25  and empowers women in college, like me, who are
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          2  directly affected by public assistance, I say

          3  Resolution 154 and 155 must be supported by all.

          4                 The media portrayal of welfare reform

          5  does not tell the real story of women and children

          6  receiving welfare. The media often concentrates on

          7  the reduction of the welfare rolls, while families

          8  have been forced out of welfare but not out of

          9  poverty.

         10                 But Pataki's proposal cuts to public

         11  assistance will affect 3 million people currently

         12  receiving some form of aid.

         13                 Full family sanctions, as well as

         14  other cuts, do not work and will harm those most in

         15  need. It would be our children who will feel it the

         16  most.

         17                 In the past two years I have seen

         18  this Council strive to uphold quality of life for

         19  all New Yorkers. This Council has been keen on

         20  providing city residents who are transitioning from

         21  welfare to work, again like myself, access to

         22  education and training.

         23                 I have had to fight these last few

         24  years to stay in school. For example, I have had

         25  five fair hearings within the last six months.
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          2  Because I am well informed of my rights, I have won

          3  each and every time. I would have said to Seth

          4  Diamond that it wasn't a failure to comply -- you

          5  know, it's not a failure to comply if HRA says I

          6  miss an appointment I did not. It is not a failure

          7  to comply if the conciliation appointment was

          8  stamped unsuccessful because I attend a four-year

          9  college. It is not a failure to comply if I can't

         10  find quality or licensed child care, and there's a

         11  waiting list. It is not a failure to comply if I

         12  receive -- if I do not receive a notice of intent or

         13  an appointment letter yet again.

         14                 But it is a failure to comply by HRA

         15  if they continue to block recipients from accessing

         16  education and training.

         17                 In the last six years we have lost

         18  23,000 students due to misguided welfare policies.

         19  We know that the proposals such as full-family

         20  sanctions will not work. If HRA really wants to live

         21  up to its mission statement of administrating

         22  effectively, they should focus on designing programs

         23  that focuses on the whole family being, not more

         24  sanctions.

         25                 Let's work together to make a real
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          2  change for better good. We encourage you, the

          3  Council, in your good work, and we at WRI support

          4  the Resolution 154 and 155.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          7  much. And thank you for your help with our previous

          8  efforts.

          9                 MS. HENRY: Thank you.

         10                 MS. STEVENS: Is this on? Hi. I'm

         11  Jillynn Stevens at the Confederation --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Bring it closer

         13  to you.

         14                 MS. STEVENS: I'm Jillynn Stevens with

         15  Confederation of Protestant Welfare Agencies. I

         16  thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak,

         17  and I'm only going to do it momentarily. I'm not

         18  going to speak long at all.

         19                 The point that I made earlier, as we

         20  had a press conference, and I really want to drive

         21  that home again, is the lack of consideration of

         22  what the financial implications and the human costs

         23  will be of the Governor's cuts to public assistance

         24  on the City. I think the City will pay a lot more in

         25  the longrun, in the short and the longrun, than will
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          2  be a savings even to the State.

          3                 I want to also repeat the quote that

          4  I got earlier when I talked to Dr. Nunez, who is

          5  president and CEO of Homes for the Homeless, when I

          6  recently asked him about his thoughts about the

          7  Governor's slash to public assistance. And the

          8  reason I'm repeating this is I think it's important

          9  to be on the record.

         10                 He said, "full family sanctions are a

         11  guarantee that families will end up in shelters,

         12  both as a unit, and also that many families will be

         13  broken up.

         14                 The number of children in the foster

         15  care system will increase as a result of these

         16  sanctions, but parents ending up in single shelters

         17  and single being placed in group homes. The cost of

         18  that break up for a family of three with two

         19  children will be $40,000 per child and $17,000 for

         20  the parent in a single shelter." That's a total of

         21  $97,000 annually.

         22                 He concluded by saying: "This is not

         23  making public policy; it's making public chaos."

         24                 With over 15,000 welfare cases under

         25  sanction in 2002, where the portion of the cash was

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  withheld, this means that if cash is withheld for

          3  all those families that are under sanction, there is

          4  a likelihood that the costs just to providing

          5  shelter will be enormous to this City. So that even

          6  ten cases results in a cost of $1 million annually,

          7  given the scenario that I gave you.

          8                 So, at this point I just want to urge

          9  the Council to support the Resolution 154, and also

         10  to urge the Council to work with the Council budget

         11  office and seeing if they can't come up with some

         12  estimate cost to the City, because perhaps that's

         13  the only way to get the Mayor to really speak out on

         14  this, is if he can actually see some projected costs

         15  to this City.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         18                 MR. HYNES: Good afternoon. My name is

         19  John Hynes. If you can't understand me, please let

         20  me know. I'll try to speak as clearly as I can.

         21                 Well, I defend the people at HRA

         22  hearings who are only trying to finish college,

         23  four-year college, and that's really short-sighted,

         24  to be polite, to kick people out, making people go

         25  to work when they're finishing college, in their
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          2  final semester. I quit welfare, but they wanted to

          3  kick them out of their final semester, makes

          4  absolutely no sense whatsoever.

          5                 The woman sitting next to me said

          6  $97,000 a year to have a family and take care them,

          7  you don't want to pay $500 of rent so you won't get

          8  evicted in the person, makes no sense at all

          9  whatsoever.

         10                 I'm also a recipient of food stamps

         11  and Medicaid, I'm an HRA client. And I find the food

         12  stamps, it took one year for me to get the food

         13  stamps, not 30 days that's required by law, one

         14  year.

         15                 When I went in there for about two

         16  minutes, everything was solid in 24 hours

         17  miraculously, and that year it was really hard. I

         18  only had a couple thousand dollars in the bank, and

         19  it was all gone, and I have a family of four, two

         20  children and my wife, who all depend on my income,

         21  100 percent of income goes to rent, and I get food

         22  stamps. That's my total income. I worked for 26

         23  years. I worked for a long time, and I didn't know

         24  that I was going to get sick with Parkinson's

         25  Disease, as I do now. But you know, I'm thankful
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          2  these programs are there, but they can be run more

          3  efficiently.

          4                 Just a couple of things. I heard Mr.

          5  Diamond say that the agency claimed an 80 percent

          6  success rate in its hearings. It's one thing, if he

          7  closed 100,000 cases at random, maybe 50,000, maybe

          8  25,000 got a fair hearing, in the 80 percent of

          9  25,000, not 100,000 hearings. The statistics can

         10  twist in any way anyone wants them to be.

         11                 I'm just going to speak a couple

         12  minutes longer. The continued system doesn't work at

         13  all in my experience. I got a cut-off notice. Saying

         14  it's not continued. I'm glad the Council is out

         15  there fighting these fights, because it doesn't

         16  matter if they say only a million dollars, some

         17  people can work for a long time and become poor

         18  without any notice. I just want to thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, we want

         20  to thank the whole panel. We appreciate your

         21  advocacy. We know it's not easy. This is not, as I

         22  said earlier about Miguel Martinez's work, this is

         23  not the most popular topic and the most well covered

         24  by the media, but you certainly have some real

         25  allies here in the City Council.
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          2                 I would urge you, because this

          3  resolution hopefully will come to a vote in the not

          4  distant future. I would urge you to alert every

          5  Council Member's office, and make clear to them why

          6  it's so important to support this. If you can't get

          7  to the Council members, certainly do get to their

          8  staff.

          9                 And I think it's surprising to me

         10  that the City of New York has not chosen to make its

         11  concerns felt more strongly to Albany. I think

         12  that's -- when I say the City, I mean the

         13  government, obviously. The Administration is taking

         14  a risk by not making this into a more public debate.

         15  I hope a number of low-income folks don't suffer

         16  because of that, but I appreciate what you're doing

         17  to bring this to public attention. We want to join

         18  you in it. And even if we are able to stop some of

         19  the worst possibilities from happening in Albany, we

         20  still have our work cut out for us on a whole range

         21  of issues related to public assistance, including

         22  the very troubling issues we heard earlier, in terms

         23  of just the day-to-day operation of the system.

         24                 So, again, thank you very much for

         25  your time, and continue your good work. Thank you.
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          2                 This meeting of the General Welfare

          3  Committee is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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